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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Motice is hereby ghven that the 317 Annual General Meeting of Sunrays Textile Mills Limited  will be held 3t Indus Dyeing & Manufacturing
Campany Limited, Plat No. 3 & 7, Sector Na. 25, Karangi | ndustrial drea, Karachi on Thursday, October 27, 2022 at 04:30 PN to trandact the
following businass:

CORDINARY BUSINESS:
1 To confirm minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on Dctober 28, 2021
2 To receive, consider; approve and adopt the audited consolidated and wun consolidat ed financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended June 30, 2022, topether with the Directors' and Auditors’ Regoris thereon and Chairman's Review Report:
3 To appoint the Statutary Auditors for the year ending June 30, 2023 and to fix their remuneranion, The Board of Directors an the

recommendation of Auwdit Commitbéee has recommended the appointrment of retiring auditars, Medsers Yousul Adil, Chartered
Accountants who being eligible have offered themselves for re-appointrent;

L8 T epprove inter i cash dividend of Rs, 5/ - per share e 50% already paid by the company (declared on February 16, 2022) as a
fimal dividend far the year ended June 30, 2022
1| =
5 To ratify the transactons carried out by the Company with related parties disclosed in the Financial Statements for the year ended

June 30, 2022 by passing the following reselution with or withaut medification:

"RESOLVED THAT all related parties transactions carrled out by the Company as disclosed |n Note No 37 of the Fimancial Statements
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 be and are hereby noted, ranfied and approved.”

6. To approve potential transactions with related parties intended to be carried out in the financial year 2022-2023 and to authorise
the Board of Directors of the Company to carry out such related party transactons at Its discretion from time to ome, irrespective
of the composition of the Board of Dractors.

The resslutions to be passed in this respect (with or without modification) as special resol utions are as under:

"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the policy appraved by the Board and subject to such conditions as may be specified from
time to tme, the Company be and ks hereby authorized to carry out transactions with the related parties for the fiscal year 202 2-237

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company may, at its discretion, approves specific related party/parties
tmnsa-t‘t‘innfs-[ fram time to time, irrespective of the compasition of the Board, and in accordance with the provisions of reelabed
laws/regulatons and Company's pollcy pertalning to related parties transactions dil the next Annual General Meeting

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT ali such transactions shall be placed before the shareholders in the naxt Annual General Mesting for
thzir nnl{hgfmﬁﬁ::lﬁmﬂfnpprwar."

[ To transact any other business with the permission af the chair, By Order of the Board
Karachi Ahmed Faheem Niazi
Date; October 4, 2022 Company Secratary
MNOTES:

1.

w

Faal

The Share Transfes Boo ks of the Company will rernain closed Tare Lhe period from Octobier 21, 2022 1o Octobes 27, 2022 [both days inclusive) and the Final
Cash Dividend will be pald to the Members whose nama appear in the Reglster of Mambers. Transfers recalved in order at the Of fice of Company's Share
Registrar /s Jwaffs Begistrar Services (Put] Lbd, 407408 Al-Ameera Center, Shahra -e-irag, Saddar Ksrachi.  ("Registrar’) ot the close of busines: on
Oetobes 20, 2022 will be conskherad bn time e attend and vote ol the Meanng.

Financial Stavements for the year ended June 30, 2022 will be available at the websiie of the Compamy www IDOUS-ErouD ©0m Twenty one days before The
date of mectHng.

Further, g3 per approval obtsined from members m Annoal General Mesting of the Company held on October 31, 2_IJ16 to crrowlale Annual Audited
Accounts through COYVIVDFLSE In 3ccordance with SAO 4702006 dated May 31, 2016 of Securties and Exchange Commissicn of Pakistan [SECP);
Bnnual Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2522 are being dispatched to the Members throegh CO/BVD. The SMembers may
request i kard copy of Annoal Audited Accounts free of cost. Standard reguest form i available bt the website of the Company www indus-group.com

Pursuant to Section 223 of the Companies Act, 2017, the Compaty is allowed bo send sudiled financial statemsents and reports 1o its members
electronically, Members sre therefare requested 1o provide thelr valid emaill IDs, For comenience, & Standard Request Form has alsa heen made
adlnble on the Company & website wawwindus-groupecom

ey (Non-COC) are requested toopromply sobily the Company's Registrar of any ¢hangs in el sddredas and submit, I spplicatile 1o tham, the
Monsdaduction of fakat Form CF =50 with the keglstrar of the Company M Twalfs Reglstrar Secyices (Pye) Lid, 407=-008 Al-amaara Center, Shahra -a-lrag,
Saddar Karachi.

M member of the Company entithed Lo gaitend and vole ot this meeting, may appoint another membes as hisfher prosy o attend and vote instead of
himhar, Froxies, in order to be effective, must be recelved at the Registersd Office of the Company not less than 48 howrs before the tima for hedding
the meching.

OO Actount Holders will further have to follew the under mentioned guidelines a2 laid dawn by the Securities and Exchange Commissian of Pakistan

FOH ATTENDING THE MEETIMNG:

in case of individuals, the accounts holders and/or sub -accownt holder and their registration details are uploaded as per the COC Aogulations, shall
authenticate his/her identity by showing his ariginal CHIC ar Passport at the time of aftending the Meeting.

in case of corparate entity, the Board of Directors” resolution | powser of attomey with speciman signaturs of the nomines shall be produced (unless |t has
been provided earlier] at the tme of the Meeting.

FOR APPOINTING PROMIES:

in case of individuals, the sccount halders andfor s ub-account Holbder and their regisiration details sre uploaded 83 per the COC Regulations, shall submie
the prosy form as per the abave requirements,

The proxy farm shall be witfessed by two perons whose names, addresses and ONIC numbers shall b= mentoned on the form.

Attested coples of CNIC of the passport of the beneficial owner and the proky shall be furnished with the prosy ferm

The proxy shall produce hisfher artginal CHNKE or original Passport at the tma of meeting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with Specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has b= en prowded
aarliar] along with progy foem 1o the Company



in,

1L

1z,

Membars are requestad to notify Change in their addrasses, IF any, in case of book entry securities in CD5 to their respective parficipantsfinyestor
ancount gervices and i case of physical shares to the Regisirar of the Company by quoting thair folia numbers and name of the Company at the aboys
mentoned addresy, if nat earlier nobhedSubmitted.

DBaduction of Incoma Tax from Dividend under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001

Purswant to the provisions of the Finance fAct 23019 efective July 1, 2019, the rates of deducton of income tax from dividend payments under the income
Tax Ordinance, have been revised as follows:

4 i LE = -
[El] Aate ol tax deduction for fier of income tae returns 15%

[} Rate of deduction tor non-flier of income &k returms 0%

= —— a. asd
The incame tex & deducted from the payment of dividend according 1o Active Tax-Payers List (ATL) provided on the website of FAR. Al those
shareholders wha are filers of Income tax returns are therefore advised o ensure that their names ara antered into ATL 1o enakle the Company to
withihoid incoms tax from pavment of cash dividend & 15% instead of 30%.

Further, accarding to clarificatlon recelved from FBR, withhalding tex will be determined separately on 'Filar/Non Filer' sta wos of Principat Shareholder as -
wall ag Jpint-holdar(s| basad on their shareholding pregartions in case of jaint aepownts hald by the shareholders
In this regard, all sharehelders who hold shares jointly sre requestad to provide the sharsholding proportians of Principal 5hareholder and loint-holders

In respect of hares held by them to our Shares Reglstrar, in writing. The joint accounts Infermation must reach 1o owr Shares Reglstrar within 10 days of
this notice. In case of nan-recoipt of the infarmation, it will be assumed that the thares arn egually held by Poncipal Sharcholder and the lont -holdes)

Mismbiers seaking axemplion rem deduction of income Lae ar are eiigible for deducten ot o reduced fate are reguested 1o submiil o valid e cerelicate
or necessary documentany evidenca as the case may ba.

Cividend Mandate and Payment of Cash Dividend through Electronic Mode

The provisians of Saction 242 of the Companias Act, 2017 require that the dividend payable in cash shall only be pald through electronic mode diracty
imto the bank accounts designated by the entitled sharcholders. Therefore, for making compliance to the prowssons of the Bw, all those physical
shareholders who have not yet submitted their IBAN bank account detsits 1o the Company are requested Lo provide the same an the Dividend Mandate
Form dvallable on Company wehbsite at W s - o oM.

Non CBC shareholders are requested to send valid and legible copy of CHIC/ Passport in cade of individoal) and NTN Certificate {in case of corporate
entity) o the Regatrar of the Company. Please note that CRIC number 5 mandatory for issusnce of dividend warrants and in the absence of this
infarmation payment of dividend shall be withheld.

Lo sharehplders who have also not provided their IBAN bank acoount details are also reguested to provide the same to their Participants in COC and
ensure that their |BAN bank account details are updated. In case of unawailability of IBAM, the Company would be constrained o withhold dividend in
accordance with the Cormpanies | DEribution of Dividends] Regulations, 2017,

Video-Link Arrangemant for online Participation in the 31° Anmsal General Meeting of the Company

Shareholders interested in attanding the Annual Genseral Meeting [AGM) through video sk Tacllity are requested 1o gat themselves reglstered with the

Company Secretary office at least two working days before the haolding of the ime of AGM at corporate sffairs@indus-grous com by providing the
following detasils:

Bame of Sharebolder CHEIC MO Falio CO:L Mo. Call MNo: Email zddress
- The Legin Feclity will remain open from 84:15% F.6, il the end of tho meobing.
- Shareholders will be encouraged 1o participate In the AGR 10 consolidate their attendance and participanon through prosies.
- Sharsholders will be abde to login and participate in AGKM oroceedings through their smart ghope or compater devices from their homs alter

completing all the facilitles required for the entification and verificanon of the Shareholders,

The Company will Tofiow the best practioss and comply with the mstrections of the Governmant and SECP to ensure protective measure are in place for
the well-bemg of its members.

video Conference Facility

Members may dvall video confarence facility for this Annual General Meatng other than Earachl, provided the Compary recefves consant (standard
farmat s given below) atleast 07 days prior to the date of the Meeting from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareho lding residing at
respective city.

The Company will iIntimate respective mambers regarding venus of the wides-link facility before the date of Meeting along with complete information
necessary to enable them to access the facliny.

I of being memberis]) of Sunrays Textle Mils Limited, holder of ordinary Sharels) as per Aegistered Folio
Mo C0C Acoount Na, naraby apy for vide conference facility at I respect of 1% Annual General Meeting of the Cormpany,
Signature of Member*

Deposit of Physlcal Shares into Central Depository

As per Section T2 af the Companies Act, 2017, every existing isted company shall be required to replace its physical shares with book-e=ntry form ina
manner as nay be speafied and from the date notified by the Commissian, within a period not exceedmg four years from the commencemeant of the At
loe. May 30, 2017, Further SECP vide Letler dated March 26, 2021 has advizad to comply Section 72 of the Act and encourage sharaholders o oonvert
their shares in book ~antry form.

In bight af abowe, shareholders bolding physical share corbificates are requested to depoait their shares in Contral Bepository by opening C0C sub-accaunts
with any of the brokers or Investor Accounts maintained directly with COC to conwert their physical shares into serip less forme This wall facilitate the
sharahalders o streamline their information in member’s Repister enabling the Company Lo ellectively communicate with the oharehalders and tirmedy
dishiersa amy entitlemanis, Further, shares hald shall remain secure and maintaming shares in scrip bass feem allows for swift sale [ purchase,



13. Unclaimed Dividends and Bonus Shares

Shareholders; who for any reason, could not claim their dividend and/or bonus shares are advised to contact our Shares Registrar M/'s
Iwatts Reglstrar Services (Pvt) Limited to collectfenguire about their unclaimed dividends and/or bonus shares if any.

14, Postal Ballot
Pursuant to companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018 for the agenda ftem subject to the reguirements of Section 143 and 144 of the
Companies Act 20017, members will be allowed 1o exercise their right of vote through e-woting, in accordance with the reguirements
and procedure contained in the aforesaid regulations.

Statement under Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the special business to be transacted at the 31st Annual General Meeting
af the Company to be held at Indus Dyeing & Manufacturing Company Limited. Plot No. 3 & 7, Sector No. 25, Korangi Industrial
Area, Karachi,

Explanation on Agenda ltem No. S & 6

The related parties transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated companies and related parties were
baing approved by the Board of Directors as recommended by the Audit Committes on guarterly basis pursuant to Section 208
of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 15 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.
Howewver, the majority of Company Directors were interested in these transactions due to their commaon directorship and
holding of shares in the group companies, the quorum of directars could not be formed for approval of thase transactions
pursuant to Section 207 of the Companies Act, 2017 and therefore, these transactions have to be appraved by the shareholders
“in General Meeting 25 3 special resolution in terms of section 208 of the said Act.

The transactions with refated parties carried aut during the fiscal year 2021-2022 to be ratified as disclosed in Note No 37 of
the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended lune 30, 2022

Likewise, since related party transactons are an ongoing process and a restriction to carry out business with related parties
merely due to absence of valld quorum would adversel y affect the business of the Company, Therefore, shareholders are belng
approached to grant the broad approval for such tranzactions to be entered into by the Company, from time to time, at the
dizcretion of the Board (and irrespective of its composition). The Company shall comply with its policy pertaining to
transactions with related parties as stated above to ensure that the same continue to be carried out in a fair and transparent
manner and on an arm'’s length basis, This would also ensure compliance wi th the Section 208(1) of the Companies Act, 2017 of
which requires that shareholders” approval shall be reguired where the majority directors are interested in any related party
transactions and regulation 4 of the Companies {Related Party Transactions and Maintenance of Related Records) Regulations,
2018 which sets out the conditions for transactions with refated parties to be characterized as “arm’s length transactions" and
states that the parties to the transacton must be unrelated in any way.

Further; it is not possible for the Company or the directors to accurately predict the nature of the related party transaction{s) or
the specific related party(ies) with which the transaction(s) shall be carried out, In view of the same and in order to ensure
smooth supply during the year, the Company seeks the broad approval of the shareholders that the Board may cause the
Company to enter into transactions with related party / parties from time to time in its wisdom and in accordance with the
palicy of the Campany for the fiscal year 2022-23.

All such transactions will be clearly stipulated at the end of the next financial year in the company’s Annual Report. In however
addition to this all such transactions shall also be placed before the shareholders in the next Genperal Meeting for their noting
approval/ ratification.

The Directors are interested in these resolutions only to be extent of their commaon directorship and shareholding in the
associated companies.



VISION

To be a most successful company in terms of quality
products, services & financial

MISSION

To provide quality products & services to our
customers and handsome return to the shareholders.



CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 2022
It is my privilege and pleasure in presenting to the members of Sunrays Textile Mills Limited, review on
the performance of the Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2022, | would take this opportunity
to invite you for the 31* Annual General Meeting of the company.
Review of the Boards Performance

After the pandemic, the Board remained engaged with the management which helped it to meet the
exceptional and unforeseen challenges. The continuous monitaring of the Board throughout the period
and the deliberations to the management were cardinal in achieving all the targets. The Board has
performed remarkably well. The Company successfully steered through the wuncertain times with

emphasis on health and safety yet, ensuring business continuity, on the back of guidance from the Board
of Directors.

STML has an Eleven-member Board of Directors, which comprises individuals with diverse backgrounds,
having core competencies, knowledge, and expertise relevant to the business of the Company. All Board
Members and the Leadership team of the Company are humbled by your everwhelming response and are
determined to deliver as per your expectations, The Board provides strategic direction to the
management and fulfills its fiduciary responsibilities with a sense of commitment.

Anannual evaluation of performance of the Board, members of the Board, and its committees was carried
out with the help of a formal and effective mechanism. Based on the feedback received through this
mechanism overall role of the Board has been found to be effective. The Board has fulfilled all its
mandatory responsibilities including ensuring compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements for
the Company.

I would like to share that all the Directors, including Independent Directors, fully participated and
contributed to the decision-making process of the Board. The Board performed its duties and
responsibilities diligently, inter alia, by:

= Ensuring that Mission, Vision, and Values of the Company are being followed;

= Effectively guiding the Company in its strategic affairs;

+ Setting annual goals and targets for the management;

= Overseeing management’s performance and focusing on major risk areas;

= Evaluating significant invastments;

= Ensuring high standards of Corporate Governance to preserve stakeholders’ value;

Furthermaore, throughout the year, all significant issues were presented to the Board or its committees,
particularly, all related party transactions of the Company were approved by the Board on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committes and Human Resource & Remuneration
Committee met regularly to strengthen the functions of the Board. The Board carried out its self-

evaluation and identified potential areas for further improvement, in line with the global best practices.

Review of Company’s Performance

The business operated smoothly with an increase in sales of 13% over the last yvear and whereas the gross
profit margins improved from 18% to 27%. The net profit after tax has been increased from 1,150 million
to 1,917 million,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to say a big thank to all our customers for their continued confidence
on the Company. | would like to express my appreciation for the contribution of the Board, excellent
efforts put in by our management and employees and finally | would like to thank all the financial
institutions who have stuck with us and supported us through very difficult times. | hope and pray that
the Company may maintain the momentum of growth in the future years,

Mian Imran Ahmed
Dctober 04, 2022 Chairman



DIRECTORS REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS

For the year Ended June 30" 2022

The Directors of Sunrays Textile Mills Limited are pleased to present the Annual Report together with the audited Financial
Statements for the year ended June 30, 2022 before the 31st Annual General Meeting of the Company.

COMPOSITION OF BOARD

The composition of the Board is in compliance with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance regulations, 2019

applicable on listed entities which is given below;

Total Number of Directars

Male 9
Female 02
Compaosition
Executive Director 03
independent Director 03
MNon-Executive Director 05
Category Names

Independent Directors

Mr. Faisal Hanif
Ms. Azra Yaqub Vawda
Mr. Faroog Hassan

Executive Directors

Mr. Kashif Riaz (CEQ)
Sheikh Shafgat Masood
Mr.Naveed Ahmed

Non-Executive Directors

Mian Shahzad Ahmed
Mian Imran Ahmed
Mrs. Fadia Kashif

Mr. Irfan Ahmed

Mr. Shahwaiz Ahmed

Female Director

Ms.Azra Yaqub Vawda
Mrs.Fadia Kashif

Financial and operational result

The Company earned pretax profit of Rs. 2,070 Million for the year ended June 30, 2022,

Rs.000

Highlights: 2022 | 2021
Pretax profit for the year 2,069,925 ! 1,239,043
Taxation (152,947) | (88,879}
Profit after taxation 1,916,978 | 1,150,164
Deferred tax and others (7,849) | 3,748
Un-appropriated prafit brought forward 3,315,924 | 2,464,945
17 interim dividend for the period ended December 31, 2020 | (128,000
1* interim dividend for the period ended December 31, 2021 (103,500) | -
Profit available for appropriations - 5,121,553 | 3,280,857
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 15,567 | 19.074
Transfer of revaluation surplus due to disposal of revalued assets 18,476 | 15,993
Un-appropriated profit carried forward 5,155,596 | 3,315,924

The earnings per share is Rs. 92,61 [Par value Rs. 10/= per share] {2021: Rs.55.56)

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 16th February 2022, have declared first interim cash dividend @ 50% Le Bs. DS/- per

shara for the year ended 30th June 2022,




BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Yaours Company earned pre-tax profit Rs. 2,070 Million as compared to Rs. 1,239 Million for the |ast corresponding year. Sales
during the year was Rs.9,758 Million (2021 ; Rs.8,641 Million) against total cost of sales of Rs.7,157 Million (2021 : Bs.7,059
Million) resulting in a gross profit of Rs.2,600 Million (2021 :Rs1,582 million).

By the Grace of ALMIGHTY ALLAH, Company execution i= stunning with development in sales and profitability. The
organization's sales developed by 12.92 % and load of more established cotton Inventories contributed attractive edges and
expanded productivity, During the year Rs 229918 (M) were invested in the fixed assets. This is part of the company’s BMR
and expansion plant of ten sets of Rooters machine), Retained earnings and |long term financing were used to finance this
program.

During the year company has acguired 100% shareholding of EMBEE industries for future business plans

FUTURE DUTLOOK

Pakistan along with other world is in a dire economic crisis, with rinsing inflation, a depleted rupee and dimirishing foreign
exchange reserves. Textile Industry is in state of emergency. Pakistan was a victim of climate change and the devastating
floods in Pakistan have severely damaged the country's cotton crop, This could potentially lead to a sizeable reduction in
cotton output, placing further supply pressure on global market and raising prices. Pakistan is the world's fifth =largest cotton
praducer, the country is a net imperter, Flood damage will likely force Pakistan to increase cotton import at a time when the

global cotton market is already facing restricted supply due to lower crops. With the Russian war on Ukraine intensifying,
maost countries are beginning to fesl the heat of the conflict in the shape of commaodity shortages and surging prices. The

potential snowball effect of this conflict is massive, with a surge in electricity rates, raising of interest rates by central banks,
wage-increase demand 1o meet increased living costs, increase of prices by businesses to compensate higher wages, and
waorkforce cuts leading to unemployment. So, In the coming months, Pakistanis will be faced with frequent and prolonged
power outages, extartionate utility bills and impediments ta othear services. In spite of all these obstacles, we hape by the
grace of ALLAH and hard work of the management and focusing its efforts on specialize and value-added high-guality textile
praducts your company will be able to achieve hetter results.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The Company always committed to prioritize its social responsibilities in the best interest of all stakeholders and overall
business environment, This being a continuows process, the conservation of natural resources, reduction in wastages,
enhancement of recycling, improvement of encrgy efficiency and enhancement of environmental performance by reducing
spills and releases were the top priorities while observing the “Corporate Soclal Responsibllity”. Like prior years targets were
set for reduction in the natural gas consumption and use of water based on the achievements made in prior years
The continued initiatives included;

*  Waste water treatment

«  conservation of natural resources

*  reduoction in wastages

* enhancement of recycling, improvemeant of energy efficiency, and

= enhancement of environmental performance by reducing spills and releases
POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Mo materlal changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company have occurred between the end of
the financial year to which this balance sheet relates and the date of the Director's report.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
Im accardance with the requirement of Code of Corporate Goverrance, the company presented all related party transactions
before the audit commitiee and the board for the review and approval. The details of all related Party transactions have been
provided in Note 37 of the annexed financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022
CORPORATE GOVERNAMCE, FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM
The Director confirms compliance with corporate and financial reporting framework as per the Listing Regulations of the
Stock Exchange as follows:

® The financial statements, prepared by the management of the company present its state of affairs fairly, the result

of Its operations, eash flows and changes |n egquity,

® Proper books of accounts of the cempany have been maintained.
Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements and any
departure there from has been adequately disclosed and explained.
The system of internal control |s sound In design and has been effectively implemented and monitored,
There has been no deviation from the best practice of corporate governance, as mentioned in the listing regulations.
Key operating and financial data for the last six year is annexed,
There are no statuary payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charge which are outstanding as on June 30th
2019 except for those disclosed in financial statements,
There has been na trading aof shares by Chief Executive, Directar, Financial Officer, Company Secretary, their spouses and
minor children, during the year, B



Board & Sub Committee Meetings
- During the year mestings of the Board wede held Attendance by sach director is a5 follows.

Board of Directors 4 - Meetings Audit Committee 4 — Mesbngs HE & R 1 - Meeting

Ko Riracton Attended Attended Attended
BAr, Maveod Ahmed
MAF: Shahzad ahmad 44
Ar, |1Fan Alrmed afa
Makan lmiran Ahmed 414 141
hir. Kazhif Riaz 474
Ar, Sheikh Shalgat Masoad af4
MArs. Fadia Kashif 4/4
MAF. Shahiesiz Almed 4/4 a4 1/1
MAr. Faroog Hassan A4/ a4
BAF. Faisal Harl A4
Mis. Aera Vagub Vawda 3fa afa 11

aja

Board of Directors

- During the pariod under tho review the transfor in shares through gift of the company by the CECY,
Pirectars, spouses and Minors as follows:

5. Mo | Name Shares Transier

1 mar, Maveed Ahmed 579,139

DIRECTORS REMUMNERATION

The directars have a formal remuneration policy for its directors (Executive/Non-Executive] duly approved by the Board of
Directars, The palicy has been dasigned as a component of HR strategy and both are required to support business strategy.
The Board believes that the policy is appropriate and effective in its abllity o attract and retain the best executlves and
directors to run and manage the company as well as to create congruence between Directors, executives and shareholders.

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

Messers Yousal Adil, Charterod Accountants,a reputable Chartered Accountants Firm comgleted its terure of appaintment with the company and being eligible
has offerad Its services for another term. The Board of Directors of Company, based on the recommendation of the audit
committee of the board, has proposed Yousuf Adil for reappointment as agditors of the company for the ensuring year.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors constituted a fully functional Audit Committee comprising three members, one Is Independent
Direclior and two are non-executive Direcltor, The terms of reference of the commities, interalia, consists of ensuring
transparent internal audits, accounting and control systems, adeguate reporting structure as well as determining appropriate
measure to safeguard the Company’s assets.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The pattern al share holding as at June 30™, 2022 as required under the Companies Act 2017, and the code of Corporate
Governance, is annexed to this report,

INTERMAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The board have setup efficient and energetic internal control system with operational, financlal and compliance controls to
carry an the business of the company. |nternal audit lindings are reviewsd by the Audit Committes, and where necessary,
action is taken in the basis of recommendations contained in the internal audit roports,

WEB PRESEMCE

Annual and periodic financial statements of the company are also avallable on the website of the company http://indus-
groug.com far information of the sharcholders and others.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The directors are pleased to place on record their appreciation for the contribution made by employees of the company and
look forward for same cordial relationship in coming yoars, In addition, management also acknowledgoes the rale of all the
financial institutions, customers, supplicrs and other stakeholders for their continued support.

On Behalf of the Board of Directors

| L ssd af—
Chief Executive Officer

Karachi
Dated: October 04, 2022



SIX YEAR KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA

OPERATING DATA
Sales

Cost of Goods Sold
Gross Profit

Profit Before Taxation
Praofit After Taxation
FINANCIAL DATA
Paid Up Capital
Fixed Asseis
Current Assels
Current Liabilites
KEY RATIOS
Gross Margin

Met Profit
Current Ratio

Eaming Per Share(Rupses)

STATISTICS
Number Of Spindle
Production in to

20/S Count(in 000 Kgs)

FROM 2017 TO 2022

2022

9,757 6682
7,157,174
2,600 508
2,082 363
1,909 806

207,000
4,226,358
54596 620

a58,078

26.65%
18.57%

6.41
82.28

34802

11430

(Rupees in 000)
2021 2020
8,640 883 6476172
7,059,086 5,565,454
1,581,797 910,718
1,239,043 646,430
1,150,164 560,164
207,000 692,000
1,663,452 1.813.371
4296801 3,091,115
547,933 418,746
18.31% 14.08%
13.31% 8.65%
V.84 741
55.56 81.18
34792 ey
11882 1053

2019

6,085,258
5,130,703
954,555
474,979
471,778

69,000
1,848,895
4,185,540
1,948,356

15.86%
T7.75%

215
B8.37

33468

10368

2018

4,952,171
4,315,188
636,983
278,908
281,885

69,000
1,608,584
4,184,174
2,398 481

12.86%
5.69%

1.74
40.85

32994

9853

2017

4,257,729
3,885,950
371,779
191,387
141,738

69,000
1,185,010
2,858,534
1,500 404

8.73%
3.33%

1.9
20.92

34912

10223



STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
( CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.

The total number of directors are 11 as per follows;

a) Male g

b} Femala 2

The composition of Board is as followed;
Category Mame
Independent Directors Ms. Azra Yagub Vowda

Mr. Faroog Hassan
Mr. Faisal Hanif
Executive Directors Mr. Kashif Riaz (CEOQ)
Sheikh Shafgat Masood
Mr. Maveed Ahmed
Mon-Executive Directors Mian Shahzad Ahmed
Mr. Shahwaiz Ahmed
Mrs, Fadia kashif
Mian Imran Ahmed
Mr. Irfan Ahmed
Female Director Ms. Azra Yoqub Vawda
Mrs. Fadia kashif

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on maore than seven
listed companies, including this company;

The company has prepared a Code of conduct and has ensuraed that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the company alona with its supporting policies and
procedures;

The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strateqy and significant
policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintainad by the company;

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
beesn taken by the board/ shareholders as empowerad by the relevant provisions of the Act and
these Regulations;
The meetings of the board were presided over by the chairman and, in his absence, by a
director elected by the board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of
Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting
af board;
The Bnar'u:l of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for the remuneration of
the directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations;
Majority of the directors of the company are exempt from the reguirement of the directors
training program or has obtained the exemption certificate. The board has arranged Director's
Tralning program for the following:

= Mr, Kashif Riaz

& Mr. Imran Ahmed

& Mr. Shahwaiz Ahmed
Mr. Faroog Hassan
Mrs. Fadia Kashif
Mr. Zahid Mahmood

10, The board has approved appointmeant of CFQ, Company Secretary and the Head of Internal

Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with
relevant requilraments of the Regulations;

11. The Financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by Chief Executive Officer and

Chief Financial Officer before approval of the Board;



12

13.

16.

17.

18.

. The board has formed committees comprising of the members given below:

a) Audit Committee
Chairman Mr. Faisal Hanif

Members Mrs. Fadia Kashif
Mr. Shahwaiz Ahmed

b} HR and Remuneration Committee

Chairman Mr. Faisal Hanif
Member Mrs. Fadia Kashif
Mr. Irfan Ahmed

c) The board may constitute the risk management committee, of such numbers and class of
directors, as it may deem appropriate in its circumstances, Lo carry out review of effectiveness
of risk management procedure and present a report to the board.

The terms of the reference of the aforesald committees have been formed, documented and
advised to the committee for compliance;

14. The frequency of the meeting of the committee were as per following:
a) Audit Committee {Quarterly)
b) HR and Remuneration Committee (yearly)

15, The board has set up an effective internal audit function;

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the guality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) quidelines on code of ethics
as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners
of the firm invelved in the audit are not a close relative (Spouses, parents, dependents and non-
dependents children) of the Chief Executive officer, Chief Financial Officer, head of Internal Audit,
Company Secretary or directors of the Company;

The statutary auditors ar the persons associated with them have not been appeinted to provide
other services except in accordance with the act, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regards;

We confirm that all requirements of Regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 of the Regulations
have been complied with excepl following;

As per regulation &, it is mandatory that each listed company shall have at least two or one third
members of the Board, whichever is higher, as independent directors and currently, there are
three independent directors In a board of eleven directors. With regard to compliance with
Regulation & pertaining to fraction contained in one-third number and not rounded up as one,
Managemeant believes that three Independent Directors are sufficient to represent minority
shareholders which are only 12.69% of total shareholders.

On behalf of the Board of Direclors

oy

Mian Imran Ahmed
Karachi:October 04, 2022 Chairman



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SUNRAYS TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Sunrays Textile Mills
Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2022 in accordance with the reguirements of regulation3g
of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility Is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and repart if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance
with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations,

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not
required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls
or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance
procedures and risks.

The Regulations reguire the Company to place befare the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions We are
only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee,

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022

Chartered Accountants

Place : MULTAM
Date: Octaber 07, 2022

UDIN: CR202210180KRZh4CGbk



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Sunrays Textile Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Sunrays Textile Mills Limited {the Company)
which comprise the statement of unconsolidated financial position as at June 30, 2022 , and the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated staternent of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of
changes in equity, the  unconsolidated statement of cash flow s forthe year then ended , and notes to the
unconsolidated financial statements including a summary of significant accounting po  licies and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

inour opmnion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated
staterment of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss |, the unconsolidated statemeant of
comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash
flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XX of 2017), in the manner
s0 required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at lune 30, 2022 and of
the profitand its comprahensive income, changes [m equity and its cash flows for the year then endead.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {15As) as applicable in Pakistan .
Owr responsibilities under those standards are further described in thedwditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statemernts section af our report We are independent of the Company In accordancewlth the Internatonal
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants  as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our otherethical responsibllities in accordance
with the Code, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those mattem that, in our professional judgment, were of mast significance in our audit of the
unconsochdated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming ocur opinion therean, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Following is the key audit matter:

Key audit matter | How the matter was addressed in our audit
. Revenue Recognition
The Company's revenue from contracts comprise of | Our audit procedures to address the Key Audit Matter
revenue from local and export sale of yarn which has | included the following;
been disclosed in note 25 to the unconsolidated Obtained an understanding of and assessing the design

financial statements. . and implementation and operating effectiveness of
Revenue from the sale is recognized, when  cantrol i
contrels around recognition of revenue;

goods is transferred to the customer and the

performance obligation is satisfied i.e. on dispatchof |- Assessed the appropriateness of the Company's
goods (note 4,14), accounting policies for revenue recognition and

compliance of those policies with applicable
accounting standards;

We identified revenue recognition as key audit matter
as it is ane of the key performance indicators of the
Company and because of the potential risk that revenue| - Checked on a sample basis whether the recorded sales
transactions may not have heen recognized based on transactions are based on transfer of goods to fie
transfer of control to the customers in i ne with the customer, satisfying the performance obligation and

accounting policy adopted and may not have been were recarded in the appropriate accounting period.
recagnized in the appropriate period,
Assessed the adequacy of disclosure in the

unconsolidatedfinancial statements




I nformation Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises thinformation included In
the Annual Report, but does not include theunconsolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
infarmation and, in daoing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparatio n and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakis tan and the reguirements of the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and  for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation ofunconsolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether duefraud
or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so,

The Board of Directors are responsible for oversesing the Company's financial reparting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether thenconsolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to (ssue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. R easonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with [5A4s as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and ae considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of theseunconsolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs as applicab le in Pakistan , we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of theunconsolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit proce dures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to pravide a basis for our apinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resultingfrom errar, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional amissions, misrepresentations, ar the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an oplinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal cantrol,

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and relateddisclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
an audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements o¢ if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to confinue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of theunconsolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether theunconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fiy presentation,



We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in Internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with theBoard of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance In the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current perlod and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a2 matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communicatian.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further repart that in cunpinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b} the statement of unconsolidated financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or |loss the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the
unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2007 (XI¥ of 2017) and are in agreement with th e books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company’'s business; and

d} zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and UshrOrdinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1980), was deducted by the
Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditts report is Muhammad Sufyan.

A Ao

Chartered Accountants

Multan
Date: October 07,2022

UDIN: AR202210180knVy1QYfl



UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS 2022 2021
Non-current assets Note e FUEEEN ~mrmscre
Froperty, plant and equipment 5 4,224,016,141 1,661,109, 666
Investment property & 2,342,055 2,342,055
Long term investment Fi 190,850,000 -
Long term depaosits 6,991,200 56,991,200
Currentasiots 4,424,199,396 1,670,442,921
Stores and spares 8 95,727,359 104,108,416
Stock in trade 9 2,188,607 098 1,649,540,605
Trade debts 10 785,425,459 1,186.277.053
Loans and advances 11 113,472,576 55,674,069
Advance income tax 113,363,625 B8, 725,852
Trade deposits 12 3,239,226 3,239,226
Other receivables 13 46,902,050 26,719,292
Other financial assets 14 1,980,330,141 B835,013,940
Sales tax refundable 72,537,332 119,270,292
Income tax refundable 20,366,823 107,472,573
Cash and bank balances 15 96,648,425 120,759,269
5,496,620,115 4,296,800,587
Total ossets 9,920,819,511 5,967,243,508
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
lssued, subscribed and paid-up capital 1& 207,000,000 207,000,000
Share premium 3,e00,000 3,600,000
Surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment 17 2,131,810,253 269,214 931
General reserves 612,000,000 612,000,000
Unappropriated profit 5,148,424,850 3,315,924,412
8,102,835,103 4.407,739,343
Non-current liabilities
Long term financing 18 883,441,966 854,634,313
Deferred liabilities 19 76,464,325 156,936,701
Current liabilities 959,906,291 1,011,571,014
Trade and other payables 20 514,701,614 261,784,169
Accrued markup 21 8,320,237 10,266,875
Shart term borrowings 22 - 29,537,768
Current portion of long term financing 18 155,288,605 133,102,824
Current portion of deferred grant 19 204,438 2,696,056
Unclaimed dividend 22,759,665 22,183,456
Provision for taxation 23 152,803,558 88,361,573
i v : B58,078,117 547,933,151
Contingencies and commitments 24
Tatal equity and liabilities 9,920,819,511 5,967,243,508

The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
[ 4
§ | L st 4f-
Shabhbir Kausar Kashil Riae

Chiel Financial Officer

Mian Imran Ahmed
Chied Executlee Otfsper Chakrman



UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021
Note ———— Rupees ————

Revenue from contracts with customers - net 25 9,757,681,828 8,640,883,390
Cost of sdes % (7,157,174,210) (7,050,086,333)
Gross profit 2,600,507,618 1,581,797,057
Distribution cost 7 (185,305,345) (140,826, 188)
Administrative expenses 28 (198,160,243) (168,520, 186)
Cther expenses 2 (150,360,109 (65,713,449)
Finance cost 30 (65,914,408) (64,116,279)
Cther income 3 61,595,229 95,422 462
(538,144,876) (342.753,640)
Profit before taxation 2,062,362,742 1,239,043 417
Taation 2 (152,556,539) (88,879,156)
Proflt for the year 1,909,806,203 1,150,164, 261

Eamings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 33 9226 55.56

The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

b’:{g | L bodfn d-'f—

Shabbir Kausar kashif Riar Mian Imran Ahmed

Chiaf Financial Cdficar Chigf Execulive Officer Chairman



UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Itemns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation - gratuity 19.2
Revaluation surplus on properly, plant and equipment 171

Total comprehensive income for the year

2022 2021
Rupees
1,909,806,203 1,150,164,261
(7,848,937) 3,747,996
1,896,638,494 -
1,B88,789,557 3,747,996
3,798,595,760 1,153,912,257

The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

e | L osk o

Shalshir Kausar koashif Riaz
Chial Financial Cihicear Chial Exaculive Oifcear

Mian Imran Ahmed
Chagrman
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Shabhir Kausar

Chiel Financial Officer

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

e RUPEES

CASH FLOWS FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Unrealized loss on re-rmeasurement of
other financlal assets-net
Realized loss on disposal of other financial assets-net
Provision for staff retirement bepefits - gratuity
Reversal of deferred tax liability
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment- net
Dividend income
Gain on remeasurement of GIDC
Interest incoms
Finance cost
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital

Changes in working capital
{lncrease) / decreose In current gssets
Storos and spares
Stock in trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances (excluding advance income Lax )
Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Sales tax refundable
Incame tax refundable
Other receivables
Increase in current obilites
Trade and other payahbles

Cash generated from operations

Finance cost paid

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity paid
Incame taxes paid

Net cosh generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Additions to capital work in progress

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Payments for long term investment

Payment for purchase of short term investments
PFroceeds from disposal of short term investments
Dividend incomae

Interest income:

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term finances obtained

Repayment of long term finances

Short term borrowings - net

Rividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

MNet increase / (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

|mecf—

2,062,362,742

2021

1,239,043,417

159,800,948

26,556,585
15,258,117
35,074,628

(579,733)

{58,639,990)

(2,375,506)
65,914,408

168,554,892

(50,453, 705)
(5,746,619)
19,194 484
15,092,718

(243,434)

(27,831,814)

(7.524,837)
[(B17,125)
64,116,279

2,303,372,199

1,413,454 357

8,381,057
(539,066,493)
420,851,594
(57,798,507)
46,732,960
87,105,750
(20,182, 758)

182,452,534

{7.434,9041
174,148,506
(843,615,730)
{18,168,419)

482,496
112,149,164)

9,334,435

10,427,114

905,948

128,476,137

(686,069, 714)

Z,431,848,336

727,384,543

{67,8B61,046)
{52,726,593)
{112,752,727)

(73,479,515)
{11,353.020)
(90,636,140}

2,198,507,970

551,915 868

{174,568,729)
{655,249,208)
4,428,752
{190,850,000)
(6,153,345,498)
4,966,214,991
58,639,990
2,375,506

{3,570,681,554)
3,201,125,025

[20,705,045)

2,412,974

27,831,814
617,125

{2,142,a54,208)

{359,399,701)

189,094,037 70,162,220
{136,797,056) {48,666,526)
(29,537,798) 10,685,053
(102,923,791} {136,562,627)
{80,164,608) (104 381,770)
{24,110,844) 88,134,397
120,759,269 32,624,872
96,648,425 170,759,269

@111 nexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements,
2 o)

Kashil Rz

Chied Executlee Otfsper

Mian Iniran Ahmed
Chakrman



NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

GENERAL INFORMATION

sunrays Textile Mills Limited "the Company” was incorporated in Pakistan on August 27, 1987
as a public limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (Now Companies

Act 2017} and jts shares are gquoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company  is
principally engaged in trade, manufacture and sale of yarn. The registered office of the
Campany is situated at Office no. 508, 5th floor, Beaumont Pleza, Beaumont Road, Civil Lines
Quarters, Karachi. The mill site is located at Khanpur Shumali khewat no. 359, District
muzaffargarh, Dera Ghazi Khan Division, in the province of Punjab,

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company in which
investment in subsidiary company s accounted for on the basis of actual cost incurred to
acquire subsidiary. Consolidated financial statements are prepared separately.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting
standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS's) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASE) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the
IFRS's, the provisions of and directives issued wnder the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed,
Basis of measurement

These uwnconsalidated financial statements  have been prepared under historical cost
convention except indicated in note 4.1, 4.2, 4.4, 4.5, 4.10, 4.11 and 4.12.

Functional an ntation curren

The unconsolidated financial statements are presented (n Pakistani Rupees, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency.

Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS  requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses., The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
belisved to be reasonable wnder circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making
the judgment about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other resources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on the ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised,

In preparing these unconsolidated fnancial statements, the significant judgement made by the
managarment in applylng accounting policies Include:

- useful life and residual values of depreciable assets (note 4.5 and 5.1)

- allowance for expected credit losses;

- pravisian for current tax and deferred tax (note 4.2 and 32)

- revaluation of assets pertaining to freehold land, building on freehoeld land, plant and machinery
and cost value of investment property;:

- staff retirement benefits (note 4.1 and 19.1)

- net realizable value of stock-in-trade (note 4.9 and 9)

STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS ADOPTED DURING THE YEAR

The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to the
Company's unconsolidated financial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after

the following dates:




3.1

3.1.1

3.2

3.3

Mew accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective

for the year ended June 30, 2022

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended lune
30, 2022, These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the
Company's operations or are not expected to have significant Impact on the Company's
unconsolidated financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Standards or Interpretations with no significant impact Effective frem accounting
period beginning on or after:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments lanuary 01, 2021

to IFR5 9, |IAS 29, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 18)

Amendment to IFRS 16 'Leases’ - Covid-19 related rent Aprll 01, 2021

concessions extended beyend June 30, 2021

MNew accounting standards [ amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective
The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting
periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards,
interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are
not expected to have significant impact on the Company's unconsolidated financial statements
other than certain additional disclosures. Effective from accounting

period beginning on or after:
Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations’ -

] 01, 2022
Reference to the conceptual framework anuary. 01,202

Amendments to |AS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment” -

Proceeds before intended use January 01, 2024

Amendments to I1AS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets’ - Onerous Contracts — cost of January 01, 2022

fulfilling a contract
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle

{related to IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and |AS 41)
Amendments to 1A% 1 'Presentation of Financial
Statements’ - Classification of liabilities as current or non- current  January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

Amendments to |AS 1 "Presentation of Financial
Statements' - Disclosure of accounting policies
Amendments to IAS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors’ - Definition of accounting January 01, 2023
estimates

Amendments to '|AS 12 Income Taxes' - deferred tax

related to assets and liabilities arising from a single lanuary 01, 2023
transaction.

January 01, 2023

Amendments to IFRS 10 and 28 - Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Assoclate or loint Venture Deferred Indefinetly
Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs,

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has also issued the following standards which have not
been adopted locally by the SECP:

- IFR% 1 —First Time Adoption of Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards

- IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts m



42

4.3

4.4

4.5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Staff retirement benefits

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its employees. The cost of
providing benefit is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuation.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately as they arise in other comprehensive
income. Past service cost is recognized immediately tothe extent that the benefits are already
vested. Otherwise it Is amortized on a straight line basis over the average period until the

amended benefits become vested.
Details of the scheme are given in the note 19.1 to these unconsalidated financial statements.

Taxation

Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of taxation after
taking into account applicable tax credit, rebates and exemption available, If any. For income
covered under final tax regime, taxation is based on applicable tax rates under such regime.

Deferred

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method for all temporary differences at the
statement of finanacial position date between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. In this regard, the effects on deferred taxation

of the portion of income subject to final tax regime is also considered in accordance with the
reguirement of "Technical Release = 27" of Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

Deferred income tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry
forward of unused tax losses and credits, if any, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which such temporary differences and tax losses and credits can
be utilized. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date,

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the
unconsolidated financial statement in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company's shareholders.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Pakistani Rupees are recorded at the rates of exchange

prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each statement of financial position date,
monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the statement of financial position date except where forward exchange

contracts have been entered into for repayment of liabilities, in that case, the rates contracted

Gains and losses arising on retranslation are included in profit or loss for the period.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment except free hold land, building on freehold land, plant and
machinery and capital work in progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment lasses, E




4.6

4.7

q.9

Revaluation

Free hold land, building on free hold land and plant and machinery are stated at revalued
amount belng the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and impalrment losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficlent regularity so
that the fair value and carrying value do not differ materially at the statement of financial position
date. Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such assets is credited in "Surplus
on revaluation of property, plant and equipment’. A decrease in the carrying amount arising
surplus on revaluation is charged to profitor loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if
any, held in the surplus on revaluation account relating to previously revalued assets. To the
extent of Incremental depreciation charged on revalued assets, on disposal of revalued assets
and the relsted surplus on revaluation (net of deferred tax) is transferred  directly to
unappropriated profit.

Depreciation is charged to income applying reducing balance method to write-off the cost over
the estimated remaining useful life of assets. The useful life and depreciation method are
reviewed periodically to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consistent  with
the expected pattern of economic benefits from tems of property, plant and equipment. Rates
of depreciation are stated in note 5. In respect of additions and dispoesals during the year,
depreciation |5 chargeg from the month of acguisition up to the month preceding the disposal respectively,
Gains / losses  on disposal of operating assets, F any, are recognized in unconsolidated
statemeant of profit and loss account, as and when incurred. Assets are derecognized whan
disposed or when no future economic benafits are expected from its use or disposal.

Mormal repairs and maintenance are charged to unconsolidated statement of profit and loss
account as and when incurred, Major renewals and Improvements are capitalized and assets
replaced, if any, other than those kept as stand-by are retired.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) s stated at cost less any recognized impairment loss. All
expenditures connected to the specific assets incurred during installation and construction
period are carried under CWIP. These are transferred to specific assets as and when aszets
are avallable for use.

Inwestment I=

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is
valued using the cost method i.e. at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any identified
impairment |oss,

Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property, calculated as difference between the
proceads from disposal and the carrying amount is recognised in the unconsolidated statement
af profit and lass.

Investment in subsidiary company

Investment in subsidiary is initially recognized at cost. At subseguent reporting dates, the
recoverable amounts are estimated to determine the extent of impairment losses, if any, and
carrying amounts of Investment are adjsuted accordingly. lmpairment losses are recognized as
an expense  in the unconsolidated statement of profit and loss. Where impairment losses are
subseguently reversed, the carrying amounts of investments are increased to revise
recoverable amounts but limited to the extent of initial cost of investments. A reversal of
impairment loss is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit and loss.

Stores ond spares

These are valued at lower of cost or net realizable wvalue, cost is determined on the basis of
moving average cost less allowance for obsolete and slow moving ltems, except for ltems in
transit which are valued at cost incurred to the staternent of financial position.

Stock in trode

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined by applying the

Raw material

- At mills Weighted average cost

= In transit At cost incurred to the statement of financial position
Waork in process Average manufacturing cost
Finished goods Average manufacturing cost

Met realizable value signifies the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,



4.10

4.11

4.12

4121

Trade debts

Trade debts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value, which is usually the
original invoiced amount and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less allowance for expected credit losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is any
indication that assets may be impaired, If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such
assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable
amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written
down to their recoverable amount and the resulting impairment loss s recognized in
unconsolidated statement of profitand loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's
fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Where impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets s increased
to the revised recoverable amount but limited to the extent of carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognized in prior periods. Reversal of
impairment loss is recognized as income.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liahilities are recognised in the Company’s statement of financial
position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are ‘initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition orissue of financial assets and financial liabilites
{other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquision of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised
cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.
Classification of financial assets

@)  Debt instruments measured at amaortised cost

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows thatare
salely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured
at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortization using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount,
adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.



The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. Interest income Is calculated by
applying the effective interast rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,

As at reporting date, the Company carries cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and
term finance certificate at amortized cost.

B)  Debt instruments meosured at foir value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCH)

Debt instruments that meect specified conditions and are measured subsequently at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVYTOCI).

As at reporting date, the Company does not hold any debt instrument classified as at FWTOCI.

cl) Equity instrurments designated as at FYTOC!

On  initial recognition, the Company may make an irrevocable  election  (on an
instrument ?bv?instrurnent basis) to designate investments in equity instruments as at FYTOCI,
As at reporting date, the Company does not hold any equity instrument classified as at FVTOCH,

d)  Finoncial ossets meosured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL).

As at reporting date, the Company carries investments in shares of listed companies and units
of mutual funds classified as at FVTPL.

Impairment of finoncial assets

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit |losses (ECL) on financial
assets that are measured at amortsed cost or at FYTPL, as well as on fApancial guarantee
contracts, The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Company always recognises lifetfime ECL  for trade receivables. For all other financial
instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. Howewver, [f the credit risk on the financial instrument has
not increased significantly since Initial recognition, the Company measdres the loss allowance

maonth ECL, Lifefime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible
default events owver the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12- month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL  that is expected to result from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within12 months after the reporting date. IFRS 9 does not
define what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk, In assessing  whether the credit risk
of an asset has significantly increased the Company takes into account gqualitative and
gquantitative reasonable and supportable forward looking information. The histerical loss rates
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-locking information on macroeconomic  factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given
default {i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information as described above. As for the exposure at default, for
financial assets, this Is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date;
for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the
reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by
default date determined based on historical trend, the Company’s understanding of the specific
future financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.
Definition of default:

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience indicates that financial assets that meet either
of the following eriteria are generally not recoverable:

-when there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor; or

- information developed internally ar obtained from external sources |ndicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Company, in full (without taking into account any
collateral held by the Company). m



4.12.2

4.14

Write 7 off policy

The Caompany writes off Ainancial assets when there s information indicating that the debtor is
in severe fnancial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Financial assets

writter off may stll be subject to enforcement activities under the Company’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made against
fimancial assets written-off are recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
fram the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. Ifthe Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues 1o recognise  the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference betwsen the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivablae s
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial ligbilities

Subsequent measurement of financial fabilities

Fimancial liabilite=s that are not

- contingent consideration of an acgulirer in a8 business combination,

- held -for- trading, or

- designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsegquently at amortised cost using the effective

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial llability, ar (where appropriate)
a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial llability.

Derecognition of financial liohilites

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's
oblipations are discharged, cancelled or have expired, The difference between the carrying

amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable s
recognised (n profit or loss,
e e L) o HierBaili

A financial asset and a financial llability is offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
fimancial position, ifthe Company has a current legal enforceable right to set off the recognized
amount and the Company also Intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which s the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to
the company.

Revenue recognition

The Company is in the business of sale of poods. Revenue from contracts with customers s
recognised when control of the goods is transferred (o the customer and the performance
obligation is satisfied wnder the contract at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Company expects to be entltled in exchange for those goods. The Company has generally
concluded that it is-the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the
goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

- Revenue from sale of goods |s recognised &t the point in time when control of the goods s
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

- Expart rebate s recognized on accrual basis at the time of making the Export sales.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate
performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g.,
right of returns, wvolume rebates), In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the
Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing
components, non cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).



4.15

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents are carried in the unconsolidated statement of financial paosition at
cost. For the purposes of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and
cheques in hand, balances with banks on current, saving and deposit accounts.

4.16 Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or production of gualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such ftime as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
All ather borrowing costs are charged to income in the period in which these are incurred.
4,17 Borrowings
Loans and borrowings are |nitially recorded at the proceeds recelved. In subsequent periods,
borrowings are stated at amortized cost using the effective yield method. Finance cost is
accounted for on an accrual basis and are included in mark-up accrued on loans to the extent
of amount remaining unpaid, If any.
4.18 i hare
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data. Basic EPS s
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS s
determined by adjusting the profitor loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.
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5.2 Disposal of praperty, plant and equipmeant of book value exceeding Rs. 500,000

Accumutated | Carrying Sale Mode of ,
ki € | peprecogion | _yorve | proceeds | % | pispoger [P | Poricdans afhuven
—
Rupees
For the year ended 2022
Plant and machinery
Chira Card 20 613,027 18596273 216,754 2136752 119,998 Megotiamon Third party . Lyalipur Textlles
Vehicles
Prrado 3,556,657 3465 533 B, 64 A50,000 163,236 Negotaton  Third party  Haris faved
Honada City 1,519,000 L 166 596 352,404 425,000 72596 Negotatgon Third party  Muhammad Akram
Suiuki Cultus L.039,000 8529473 185,057 250,000 63,843 Negotiatfon Third party  Mubuismnoad Arslan
Toyota Fartumar & TR, 00 4864 142 S07.4857 1000000 92,143 Negotafion Third party  Shahid Lasif Athar
Suzukl Cultus 1.058,000 Fas 116 263,854 315,000 BL116 MNegotiaton Third party  Manmoor Tarlg
33,558,724 25,745 003 3813721 4386752 573,031
For thie year ended 2021
Plant and machinery
China Card 12,500,917 10934 417 1576500 1.M5983 133483 Negotiation Third party  Combine Spinning Pet, Litd
Purata Alfo Coner 5,304,119 4,345,635 355,484 416,667 61,183 Megotiamon Third party  Muhammad Umer Faroog
17,805,036 15,E73,052 1,831,984 2,132 650 150,666
2022 2021
5.3 Depreciaton for the yvear has been allocated as under: Note etamr Rﬁ[m! o
Cost of goods sald 26 145,839,803 156,070,442
Administrative expenses 28 13,961,145 172 484 451
150 4R 168.554.893
Machinery in transit 456,936,184
Building 19R.413.024 -
S.4a.1 655,349,208 =
5.4.1 Moverment in capital work in progress
Cpening balance - 28,751,200
Additons during the year 655,349 308 -
Transferrod to operating assoes - (2B, 751,200)
555,349,208 =
5.5 The Company has its freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery revalued on
June 30, 2022 by loseph Lobao (Private] Limited & MY.K Associate [(Private) Limited, independant
waluers. The bhasis used for the revaluation of thiese assets were as follows:
Ereefold foand
Fair market value of the land was assessed thraough inquirics in the wicinity of Bnd, roecent market
deals and information obtained through estate agents and property dealers of the area.
Building en freehold lond
Fair market value of the bullding was assessed mainly through new construction wvalue, depreciation
cost factors, state of infrastructure, current trends im0 prices  of real estate (0 the wvicinity and
information abtamed through estate agents, builders and developers.
Plant aond araclifibery
Fair market wvalue of the plant and machinery was Aasseusged through inguiries of |local authorized
cdealers who deal in old and new similar type of plant and machineries. Replacement wvalue was then
ascoertalned from competitve rates of the plant and machinery and thoreafter, an average
depreciation factor was applied on the replacement value of the plant and machinery.
Forced sale value of the above items of property, plant and eguipment is as follows: Bupacs
Freehold land TA43,082,000
Building on reebiold lamd 375,000,000
Plant and machinery 1, 500,000, 600
Z&LBIEZIEIJD
5.6 Had there been no revaluaton the related figures of freehold land, buillding on freehold land and plant
and machinery as at the statement of financial position date would have been as follows;
2022 2021
=== Bupces —=————
Freehold lancd 122,530,730 ¥9.368.530
Building on freehold land 147,688,155 41,745,178
Flant and machinory 1,996 642 TS 1,187,220,720
2 466,861, F&0 1,308, 354 488
&, INMVESTATENT FPROFERTY
Invesument property cComprises ol agricuitural land held by the Company for capital appreciation
purposes, and 5 not currantly in use by the Company for business purposes:; The fair valua as at
Jurse 30, 2019 Is R=. 45649 million. The foreed sale wvalue has been assessed as @t June 30, 2019 i

A=, 37109 million,. The investrment properly is located s Shujabad, District Moltan
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LONG TERM INVESTAENTS 2022 2021

. Nate P ———teta F{ T ¢ e —
Investment in subsidiary company - at cost
Embee Industries (Private} Limited 7.1 190,850,000 -
Embee Industries (Private} Limited (EIL) is a private company incorporated in Pakistan. As at the

reporting date, the company holds 100 percent shares (173,500 issued,

subscribed and paid up

share of PKR 100 each) of EIL. The EIL is engaged in business of manufacturing and sale of ice.

2 2021
STORES AND SPARES -~ Rupees —--—-—-
Stores 49,392 812 67,182,421
Spares 46,334,547 36,925,985
95,727,359 104,108,416
STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw material 1,422,495,562 1,235,008,282
Raw material in-transit 511,929,544 249,398,525
Waork in process 49,121 588 40,247 255
Finished goods 105,250,471 33,632,473
Waste 99,809,933 91,163,770
2,188, 607,098 1,649,540,605
TRADE DEBTS
Foreign - secured and considered good 254,322,451 785,989,799
Local - unsecured 10.1 513,619,543 393,054,090
767,941,994 1,189,043 889
Bad debts written off 249 {500,638}
Allowance for expected credit losses 10.2 {2,516,535) {2,266,198)
765,425 459 1,186,277.053
It includes due from associated undertakings relating to sale of yvarn in normal course of business,
Detail of balances due is as follows; 2022 2021
s RUpees ——---———
Indus Dyeing & Manufacturing Co. 10.5 & 37 541,354 -
Indus Home Limited 10.6 & 37 13,771,486 14,222 881
Allowance for expected credit losses
Opening balance as at July 1 2,266,198 2,266,198
Expected credit losses 250,337 =
Closing balance as at June 30 2,516,535 2.266,198

Trade debts are generally on 60 to 90 days credit terms,
As at year end, trade receivables of Rs, 1,571,811 (2021: Rs. 573,833) were past due.

The maximum outstanding balance during the year due from Indus Dyeing & Manufacturing Co.

Limited {associated undertaking) is Rs. 0.54 million (2021 Rs. Nil).
The maximum outstanding balance during the year due from Indus Home Limited
(20212 Rs. 14.22 millian).

Rs. 71.82 millian

OANS AN ES Note N ——
Considered good
Due from employees 111 13,533,659 25,405,492
Advances :
To suppliers / services 85,267,713 29,287,904
To contractors 29,507 59,556
Letter of credit margin 14,641,697 921,117
113,472,576 55,674,069
This are interest free loans, secured against gratuity not more than Rs, 1,000,000 (2021: Rs,

1,000,000} to a persan,



12.

13,

14.

14.1

TRADE DEPOSITS

Bank guarantee margin

OTHER RECEIVABLES
Cotton claims - considered good

Rebate claims
Other

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Meausred at fair value through profit & loss

Meausred at amortised cost

14.1
14.2

Market value of other financial osseits

Number of units

2022 2021
215,675 215,675
294,101 204,101

4,364,720 1,096,443

107,284 107,284

111,061,590 30,104,702

134 430,416

210,934 1,797,784
115 .

1,332

1,291,841 -
27 -

- 34,2908

758 758

Number of shares
2022 2021

- 138,000

275,000 275,000

2 16,500

- 150,353

- 164,000

- 18,262
69,962 -

4,150

64,500 -

91,914 91,914
43,500 -

90,000 44,235

- 25,000

374,897 87,300

2 32,200

- 13,000

= 82,500

32,920 32,920

- 26,400

Investments in units of mutual
funds

NAFA Stock Fund

ABL Stock Fund

MCRB Cash Management Optimizer
UBL Stock Advantage Fund
National Investment Trust
Alfalah GHP Money Market Fund
First Habib Cash Fund

ABL Cash Fund

HBL Money Market Fund

LIBL Liguidity Plus Fund

NEP Mahana Amadni Fund

MNAFA Money Market

Mafa |slamic Energy Fund
Investment In ordinary shares of
listed companies

Engro Fertilizer Limited

Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited
Mishat Mills Limited

United Bank Limited

Bank Al Habib Limited

Pak International Bulk

Terminal Limited

Systems Limited

Highnoon Labortaries Limited
Pakistan Aluminium Beverages
Qil and Gas Development
Company Limited

Tarig Glass Industries Limited
Lucky Cement Limited

Sui Southern Gas Company Limited
Habib Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

Kot Addu Power Company Limited
Mishat Chunian Power Limited
Engro Corporation Limited

Amreli Steels Limited
Cresent Steel and Allied products

2022 2021
--------- Rupees --ccccecae
3,239,226 2,239,226
44,522,812 24,314,962
2,122,182 2,122,182
257,056 282,148
46,902,050 25713293
1,880,330,141 835,013,940
100,000,000 .
1,980,330,141 835,013,940
2022 2021
-~ Rupees e
2,975,581 3,460,138
3,812,015 4,663,819
442,145,300 110,695,034
7,456,205 B,424,075
1,072,155,275 290,221,369
13,155 42 283,410
21,368,813 180,928,251
1,177 =
136,918
120,589,764 .
271 -
- 339,504
6,684 1,187
2022 2021
eie—— 171 .| - Sttt
- 9,697,260
10,395,000 7,906,250
- 1,539,450
- 23,261,137
= 11,459 620
- 207 822
23,077,665 -
2,198,961
2,033,685 -
7,230,874 8,734,587
4,515,735 -
41,313,600 38,185,634
- 332,500
34,243,092 10,682,901
- 5,162,509
- 576,550
= 1,739,151
8,463,403 8,698,561
- 1,145,816



14.2

14.3

15,

15.1

26,400

3 24,200
< 16,700

1,200 2,200

- 205,500

- 7,540

. 69,000

- 65,600

104,004 29,000
15,300 20,000

- 3,200

177,140 152,140
2,568 2,120

- 70,400

239,528 38,397

- 9,545

21,000 21,000
42,099 11,100

- 1,400

- 69,500

- 4,000

159,050 11,950
119,217,243 36,153,627

Number of certificates
2022 2021
1,000 -

119,218,243  36,153.627

Amreli Steels Limited
Cresent Steel and Allied products

Limited
Engro Foods Limited
GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited

Faull Cement Company Limited
Kehinoaor Textile Limited

0.G Khan Cement Company Limited
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited
Mughal [ron & Steel Industries
Limited

Bestway Cement Limited

EFU General Insurance Limited

Hub Power Company Limited

Mari Petroleum Company Limited
Pak Elektron Limited

Meezan Bank Limited

Searl Pakistan Limited
Interloop Limited
International Steels Limited

GlaxoSmithEline Consumer Health
Care Pakistan Limited

Eank Al Falah Limited
Archrama Pakistan Limited
Pakistan Oilfields Limited

Investment in term finance certificate

Mote

Habib Bank

Limited 143

- 1,146,816

: 2,032,316

S 1,921,836

285,996 164,474

. 4,726,500

- 567,008

- 8,136,480

- 3,081,883

5,994,791 3,027,600

1,942,794 3,230,400

= 371,168

12,075,634 12,120,994

4,467,652 3,231,707

; 2,468,224

27,061,873 4,431,398

- 2,315,808

9,138,227 1,470,630

2,498,997 1,036,851

. 350,126

- 2,236,510

- 2,290,000

7,730,681 4,706,627

1,880,330,141 235,013,940
2022 2021

———-—- Rupees o
100,000,000 :
1,980,330,141 835,013,940

This represents investment in AA+ rated, unsecured, subordinated, perpetual and non-cumulative
term finance certificate of Habib Bank Limited, having face walue of Rs.100,000

carries profit at the rate of 3 Months KIBOR + 1.50%

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cashin hand

Cash at bank
- Current accounts
- Deposit accounts
- Saving accounts

- Term deposit receipts

per annuni.

Note

15.1
151
15.1

certificate and
2022 2021

----- ——— RUPEES ===
422,271 224577
86,110,243 115,352 049
1,026 979
133,406 141,664
9,981,479 5,000,000
96,226,154 120,534,692
96,648,425 120,759,269

Effective markup rate in respect of saving, deposit accounts and term deposits receipts ranges from
6% to 12% (2021: 5.50% to 6.25%) per annumm.



ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL
16, ED BED AND PAID L o—

16.1

16.2
16.3

17.

17.1

1s8.

2022 2021
Authorized copital =————- RUpees -——---
50,000,000 50,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 sach 500,000,000 500,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
20,700,000 20,700,000  fully paid In cazh 207,000,000 207,000,000

205,962 (2021: 208,752) ordinary shares of Rs, 10 each are held by the associated companies in the

capital, detailed as follows:

Indus Dyeing & Manufacturing Company Limited

The Company has only one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fiked income.

Shareholders are entitled to cast vote proportionate to the paid up value of shares

2022

2021

No. of shares

205,962

208,752

205,962

208,752

rights. aAll shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF
PROPERTY, FLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Note - Rupees

carrying wvoting

17.1 2,131,810,253

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant ond equipment

Cpening balance

Surplus arising on revaluation
- Land
- Bullding
- Plant & Machinery

Transferred to unappropriated profit on account of ¢

Incremental depreciation

Revaluation surplus dus to disposal of revalued assets

Closing balance

Related deferred tax llability
Opeaning balance

Reversal of deferred tax liability

Closing balance

LONG TERM FINANCING
From banking companies - secured
Term finance:

Alliad Bank Limited
Allied Bank Limited

LTFF:

United Bank Limited
Bank Alfalah Limited
MCB Bank Limited
Allied Bank Limited
Allied Bank Limited
Deferred grant

Less: Current portion
Less: Current portion of deferred grant

269,214,931

269,214,931

304,281,512

744,963,309
375,348,678
826,226,507

1,896,638,494

(15,566,897)
(18,476,275)

{19,073,555)
(15,993 026)

{34,043,172) 135,066,581)
2,131,810,253 269,214,931
. (15,092,718}
- 15,092,718
2,131,810,253 269,214,931
IR 3,600,000 -
18.2 115,304,000 -
118,204,000 -
18,3 36,933,825 51,707,355
18.4 363,281,250 375,000,000
18.5 352,405,247 405,907,786
18.6 104,914,486 79,662,010
18.7 66,496,200 78,360,480
19 - {204,438}
924,031,008 590,433,193
1,042,935,008 990,433,193
(159,288,605) (133,102,824
{204,437} {2,696,056)
883,441,966 854,634,313
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18.4

18.5

18.6

187

13,

19.1

Allied Bank Limited - Ti Fi
This finance has been abtained from Allled Bank Limited for BME, The loan was repayable in 16 equal

half yearly installments commeancing  fram May 25, 2022 with 2 months grace poriod from the date of
1st disbursermnent. It carried mark up at the rate of 6 Months KIBOR + 0.50%. The finance was
secured against first pari passu charge owver all present and future fixed assets the Company for
Rz, 134 million inclusive of 25% margin.

Allied Bank Limited - Term Finance (Rooters)

This financo has boeen obtained from Allled Bank Limited for BMR, The loan was repayable in 16 egual

half yearly Installments commencing from June 14, 2024 with 2 years grace period. carried mark up
at the rate of 6 Months KIBOR + 0.75%. The finance was secured against first pari passu charge
over present and future fized assets of the Company for Rs.800 millian inclusive of 25% margin,

United Bank Limited - LTFF

This finance has been obtained from United bank Limited for BMR. The loan is repayable in 10 eqgqual
half yearly installments commencing from February 18, 2019 with 11 months grace period. It carries
markup at flat rate of 3%. The finance is secured against first pari passu charge amounting to Rs.
125 million over all present and future Axed assets of the Company with 25% margin,

Bank Alfalah Limited- LTFF

This finance has been obtained from Bank Alfalah Limited for BMR. The loan is repayable in 32 aqual
guarterly installments commencing from June 18, 2021 with 2 years grace period. carries markup
at flat rate of 3%. The finance is secured against first pari passy charge amounting to Rs. 500 million
over all present and future fixed assets of the Company with 25% margin.

MCB Bank Limited - LTFF

This finance has been obtained from MCEB Bank Limited for BMR. The loan is repayable in 16 equal
half yearly installments commencing from April 18, 2020 with 2 years grace period. It carries markup
at rate of 2.5%. The finance s secured against first parl passu charge amounting to Rz 600 milllon
over all present and fulture fiked assets of the Company with 25% margin,

Allied Limited - L

This fimance has been obtained from Allied Bank to pay salaries and wages under SBP's Refinance
Scheme for payment of wages and salaries. The loan Is repayable in 8 equal quarterly installments
commencing from Jan 31, 2021. It carries mark up at Mat rate of 1.25%. The finance Is secured
apainst first pari passu charge amounting to Rs, 152 million over all present and future fixed assats of

Allied Bank Limited - LTFF

This finance had been obtained from Allied Bank for BMR. The loan is repayable in 16 equal half
vearly installments commencing from May 25, 2022 with 3 months grace period, It carries mark up at
the rate of SBP + 0.50%. The finance is secured against first parl passu charge over all present and
future fikxed assets of the company for Rs. 134 Million inclusive of 25% Margin.

safar [il+ ] 5

MNote _2—.‘{'?—2_ Rupees ?;_%
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity 18.1 76,464,325 86,267,353
Provision for Gas Insfrastructure
Development Cess (GIDC) 19.4 - 70,464,910
Deferred Grant 195 - 204 438
76,464,325 156,936,701
Staff retirement benefits - grotuity
Liability recognized in the statement of
financial position
Present value of defined benefit obligation 76,464,325 86,267,253
76,464,325 86,267,353
Opening balance 86,267,353 B2, 173.HES
Charge for the year 35,074,628 19,194,484
Payment made during the year |52,726,593) (11,353,020)
Actuarlal (gain) / less from changes in
exparience adjustments 7,226,427 (#.085,344)
Actuarial loss / (gain) from changes in
financial assumptions 622,510 341,348
76,464,325 86,267,353




i9.2

19.3

is.4

Changes in present value of defined 2022 2021

benefit obhligation NMate 0 e Rupeas —-——-e—--
Oponing defined bonefit abligation 86,267,353 82,173,885
Current service cost 16,229,063 12,692,207
Past service cost 12 855,159 -
Interest cost 5,990,906 6,502,277
Benefits paid (52,726,593) (11,353,020)
Actuarial {gain} / loss from changes in
experience adjustments 7,226,427 (4,089, 344)
Actuarial loss / (gain) frem changes in
financial assumptions 622,510 341,348
76,464,325 86,267,353
Charge for the year
Current service cost 16,229,063 12,692 207
Past servico cost 12,855,159 -
Interest cost 5,990,406 6,502 277
35,074,628 19,194,484
Allocation of charge for the year
Cast of sales 26.2 31,707,631 14,3594 484
Administrative expenses 281 3,366,997 4,800,000
35,074,628 19,194, 484
Remeasurement gain/loss recognised in
! ' T
Actuarial [(gain) / loss from changes in experience adjustments 7,226,427 (4,089,344)
Actuarial loss from changes in financial assumptions 622,510 341,348
Remeasurement gain/loss 7.,B48,937 {3,747,998)

As per actuarial waluation carried outas at lune 30, 2022 by Mauman Associates using Frojected Unit
Credit Method, the following significant assumptions  have beon used for valuation of defined benefit

obligation of the Company: 2022 2021

Discount rate 13.25% 10.00%
Expected rate of salary increase |n future years 12.25% 9.00%
Average expected remaining working life time of employees 6 years G years

Maortality rate was based on the State Life Corporation (SLIC) 2001-2005 ultimate mortality rates with
1 yoar setback as per recommendation of Pakistan Society of Actuaries ("PSOA").

Staff retirement benefits sensitivity analysis Increase/(decrease] in defined
benefit obligation
22z 2021
Rupees
Year end sensitivity analysis [+/- 100 bps) on defined benefit obligation:
Discount rate + 100 bps 72,491,013 81,090,114
Discount rate - 100 bps 81,003,071 92,188,553
Salary Increase 4 100 bps 81,160,899 92,371,633
Salary Increase - 100 bps 72,277,986 HO,B31, 626
2022 2021
Maturity Profifs
Average duration of Hability & years & years

Expected contribution for the rext year
The expected contribution to the gratuity scheme for the next year works out to As. 25.549 million.

Provision for Gas insfrastructure Development

2022 2021
Cess {GiDC) e —— Rupees =
Provision for GIOC 70,464,910 84,959,849
Less: Current portion (70,464,910) (14,534,939}
- 70,464,910

On August 13, 2020 the Supreme  Cowrt of Pakistan  (SCP)  through its order declored GIDC  Act an
intra wires to the constitution and directed all the industrial ond commercial entities to poy the Cess
that have become due up o July 31, 2020 However, gs o concession, the same weas allowed to be
recovered in twenty four equal monthly instaliments starting from August 01, 2020,

in fight of the above stated order of SCE the Company  opted to recognize the Cess  os payoble in
twenty four equol maonthly instailments in occordonce with the prowvision of 1AS 37,



18.5 DEFERRED GRANT

As mentioned in note 17.7, the 5S5tate Bank of Pakistan ([5BP) through circular no. 6 dated April 10,
2020 introduced a ‘Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries to Workers and
Employees of Business Concern (the Refinance Scheme). The purpose of the Refinance Scheme s
to provide relief to dampen the effects of COVID- 19 by providing loans at concessional  [nterest rates,
The Company obtained financing of Rs. 106.22 million under the Refinance Scheme. The benefit of
below market interest rates, measured as the difference between the fair value of loan and loan
proceeds on the date of disbursement has been recognised as deferred grant. The deferred grant is
amaoartized over the term of the loan Le., 2.5 years. In line with the recognition of interest expense, the
Brant is compensatory,

The movement during the year is as follows:

2022 2021
Note il Lo ey
2,900,494 .
7,604,320

As at July 01
Recognized during the year

Amortized during the year (2,696,057) {4,703,826)
Az at june 30 204,437 2,900,494
Less: Current portion {204,437) (2,696,056)
Mon current portion - 204,438

20, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Credltors 175,610,057 47,314,986
Provision for infrastructure cess 20.1 134,662,322 118,362,773
Accrued llabilities B6,551,655 47,504,446
Current portion of provision for GIDC 19.4 70,464,910 14,534, 939
Sales tax payable 41,243,810 617,573
Advances from customers 3,338,076 2,331,951
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 20.2 545,407 7212811
Commission on expaort sale 1,356,508 22,934,177
Cue to employees 908,726 675,695
Income tax deducted at source 20,143 294 818

514,701,614 261,784,169

20.1 This includes provision for Sindh Development and Infrastructure Cess  which was levied by the
Excise and Tax Department of Government of Sindh on goods entering or leaving the province
through air or sea at prescribed rate under Sindh Finance Ordinance, 2001, The levy was challenged
by the Company along with other companies in Sindh High Court (SHC). SHC through its interim
order passed on May 31, 2011 ordered that for every consignment cleared after December 28, 2006,
50% of the value of infrastructure cess should be paid in cash and a bank guarantee for the remaining
amount should be submitted until the final order 15 passed., The management is confident for a
favorable outcome, however, as a matter of prudence Company has paid Rs, 13466 million upto
June 30, 2022 (50%) of the value of infrastructure cess in cash and recorded liability for the remalning
amaount which is supported by a bank guarantee. During the year, the Sindh High Court has passed
an order on lune 4, 2021 for settiement of remainder of Infrastructure Cess against which the
Company has filedan appeal in Supreme Court and the Company's legal counsel expect that the
matter will be decided in favour of the Company.

20.2 Workers' Profit Participotion Fund Note _20ag Rupees .. 2021
Opening balance 7,212,811 498 884
Payment to the fund (7,212,811) [428,884)
Charge for the year 29 108,545,407 65,212 811
Payment of the fund from current year liahility (108,000,000} (58,000,000}
Closing balance 545,407 7,212,811

21. ACCRUED MARKUF
Accrued markup on:
= Short term borrowings 896,258 3,572,225
- Long term borrowings 7,423 979 6,694,650
uiazui:r.;? 10,266 875




22, ZHORT TERM BORROWINGS 2022 2021

Secured - under markup aorrangements Rupees
frem banking Companies
Running finances (RF) 29,537,798
221 - 29,537,798

22.1 Short term faciliies available from commercial banks under mark up arrangements amount to Rs,
5,475 Milllon(2021: Rs., 65,475 million) of which faciliies aggregating to As. 6,475 million { 2021: Rs.
6,446 million) remained unutilized at the year end, The rate of mark up ranges from 7.86% to 15.06%
per annurm [(2021: 7.81% to B.69% per annum) pavable on gquarterly basis. These fnances are
secured against pledge of raw material and finished goods and charge on current assets of the

23.

24.1

25.

25.1

Company. Note

PROVISION FOR TAXATION
Opening balance
Provision made during the year

Prior year adjustment
Adjustments against completed assessments

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

Bank guarantees 24.1
Forelgn bills purchased

Irvland bills purchased

Bank guarantees
In favor of Bank

Sul Morthern Gas Pipelines Limited  MCB Bank Limited
Ministry of Textile MCB Bank Limited
Excise and taxation Soneri Bank Limited
Ewcise and taxation Inited Bank Limited
Import licence fee Hahib Bank Limited
Excise and taxation MCB Bank Limited

Commitments

Under letters of credit for:
- Stores and spares

- Raw material

- Plant and machinery

Revenue from contracts from customers - net

Exparts

Yarn 251
Waste

Rebate Claim
Local
Yam

Coubling
Waste

Sales tax on local sales
Commission

2022 2021
—————— Rupees --
BH,361,973 85,329,951
152,803,558 88,361,973
241,165,531 173,691,924
247,019 14,575,535
(88,608,992} (99,905,486)
152,803,558 BE 361,973
201,481,302 164,921,302
1,182,441,108 587,060,000
50,785,020 98,672,017
1,434,707,430 B50,653,319
57,061,261 57,061,261
599,574 599,574
23,985,915 23,985,915
110,560,000 83,000,000
274,552 274,552
9,000,000 -
201,481,302 164,921,302
2022 2021
] Rupees ———--—-——
21,388,308 &
239,520,128 351,482,855
989,328,506 81,151,500
1,250,236,9492 432,634,355

8,741,485,561

7,382,482 618

- 10,104,732
75,578,193 -

8,817,063,754 7.392,587,350
1,148,034, 887 1,587,307,008
9,569,456 10,408,623
397,438,600 240,033,136
1,555,042,943 1,837,748 857
{554,455,787) (544,643,942)
(59,969,082) {44,808,875)

9,757,681,828

£,640,883,390

It includes indirect export of Rs, 2,964.31 million { 2021: Rs. 2,126.67 milllon).




26.

26.1

26.2
27.

28

28.1

COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed
Power and fuel

sSalaries, wages and benefits
Depreciation

Packing material consumed
Stores and spares consumed
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance

Allowance for expected credit losses
Others

Woark in process
Opening stock
Closing stock

Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods
Opening stock
Purchase of finished goods
Closing stock

Raw material consumed
Opening stock
Purchases including purchase expenses

Closing stock

It includes Rs 31,7 million (2021: Rs, 14.4 million}

DISTRIBUTION COST

Export development surcharge
Croean freight

Forwarding expenses

Local freight

Fuel expense

Others

ADAINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and benefits
Directors’ remuneration
Depreclation

Vehicle running and maintenance
Travelling and conveyance
Postage, telephone and fax
Electricity, gas and fuel

Printing and stationery

Aunditors’ remuneration

Rent, rates and taxes

Donations

Insurance

Fees, subscription and periodicals
Entertainment

Repairs and maintenance

Legal and professional charges
Others

Note
26,1

6.2
5.3

Note

283.1
34
5.3

282

28.3

BRR e RERA
5,729,938,658 5.045,139,882
543,186,453 411,637,918
314,173,887 273,323,915
145,839,803 156,070,442
102,403,524 91,216,576
118,152,968 67,597 426
8,247,945 3,445,278
7,340,737 5,291,888
250,337 -
2,060,892 1,284,547
6.971,595,204 6,055,008,872
40,247,255 35,073,406
{49,121, 588) (40,247,255}
{B,874,333) (5,173,849)
6,962,720,871 6,049, 835,023
124,796,243 129,549,303
274,717,500 1,004,498,250
{205,060,404) (124,796,243}
154,453,339 1,009,251,310

7,157,174,210

F,059,086,333

1,235,098,282
5,017,335,938

1,659,066,402
4,621,171,762

7,152,434,220
{1,422,495,562)

6,280,2358,164
(1,235,008,282)

5,729,938, 658

5,045,130 882

im respect of staff retirement benefits - gratulty,

15,229,651 11,612,681
115,197,724 63,527,051
25,491,686 29,053,007
11,861,766 15,106,888
16,961,878 20,789,997
562,640 736,564
185,305,345 140,826,188
62,169,430 57,403,664
67,264,830 52,563,589
13,961,145 12,484,451
15,857,882 11,833,231
4,447,807 2,699,423
3,309,633 3,003,368
2,958,533 2,690,451
2,766,605 1,790,678
1,650,000 1,650,000
4,687,357 3,802,738
2,619,440 2,345,100
1,952,358 1,585,101
5,415,133 6,335,847
3,391,213 1,833,026
6B1,355 584,598
1,286,000 2,226,260
3,740,922 3,674,361
198,160,243 168,520,186

It includes Rs, 3.68 million (2021: Rs. 4.8 million} in respect of staff retirement benefits - gratuity.




2022 2021

28.2 Auditors’ remuneration == ANpees e
Statutory audit 1,100,000 1,100,000
Review report on compliance with COCG 100,000 100,000
Half year review 250,000 250,000
Certificate for CDC and free float shares 200,000 200,000

1,650,000 1,650,000

28.3 Iincludes no amount abowve Rz, 500,000 given to any donee and none of the directors or their
spouses has any interest in the donee's fund.

2022 2021
28, OTHER EXPENSES Note 0 e Rupees =
Workers® Profit Participation Fund 20,2 108,545,407 65,212,811
Unrealized loss on remeasurament of
short term investmants 26,556,585 z
Realized loss on disposal of short term investments 15,258,117 -
Gad debts wirtten off 10 = 500,638
o i e 150,360,109 65,713,449
Interest / mark up on:
Long term fnancing 28,120,192 28,617,320
Short term borrowlings 30,882,008 29,095,151
Bank charges and commission 6,912,208 6,403,808
65,914, 408 64,116,279
31. OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
Linrealized gain on remeasurement of - 50,483,705
short term Investments
Realized gain on disposal of short term investments - 5,746,619
Interest / prafit on bank deposits 2,375,506 617,125
Dividend income 58,639,990 27,831,814
Income from non financiol assets
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 579,733 343,434
Profit on trading - 3,874,928
Remeasurement of Gas Insfrastructure
Development Cess (GIDC) = 7,524,837
61,585,229 06,422,462
32. TAXATION
Current year:
Current 32.1 152,803,558 £8,361,973
Deferred - 15,092,718
Prior yvear adjustment (247,019) {14.575,535)
152,556,539 28,879,156

32.1 The Company falls under the ambit of presumptive tax regime under section 169 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 for the current year.

32.2 Provision for deferred income tax is not required as the Company is chargeable totax under section
169 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and no temporary differences are expected to arise in the

32.3 Reconciliabon of tax expense and product of accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate is
not required in view of presumptive taxation,

323, EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED (RUPEES) 2022 2021
Profit after tax Rupees 1,509,806,203 1,150,164,261
Weighted b f ordi

sl dabh o AL ) e el - Numbers 20,700,000 20,700,000
Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 92.26 55.56

33.1 There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company.



REMUNERATION TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

Chief executive Director Executbives

2022 T e R R e e
Remuneration 22,363,636 10,254,545 19,791,273
House rent 2,236,364 1,025,455 1,979,127
Conveyance - cars 1,586,196 292 695 4,443,925
Other benefits 19,117,244 10,388,695 6,422,946

45,303,440 21,961,390 32,627,271
Mumber of persons 1 1 14
2021 P ——— 1 {11 .0 - Rttt
Remuneration 19,636,364 10,506,000 16,862,182
House rent and other benefits 1,963,636 1,050,600 1,686,218
Conveyance - cars 1,152,644 257,535 2,945,526
Other benefits 10,350,888 7,645,922 6,028,753

33,103,532 19,460,057 27,522,679
Mumber of persons 1 1 14

Chief Executive and a director are aiso entitled to free use of the Company maintained cars.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the
Company's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk. Further guantitative
disclosures are included throughout these unconsolidated financial staterment.

The Board of Directors has averall responsibiiity for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's rlsk management framework. The Board |s responsible for developing and monlitering the
Company's risk management policies,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter party to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from deposits, trade debts,
loans and advances, other receivables and bank balances. The carrying amount of financial assets
represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum esposure o credit risk at the reporting date was:

2022 1
--------- Rupees —=----—
Trade debts 765,425,459 1,186,277,053
Other receivables 46,902,050 26,719,292
Long term deposits 6,991,200 6,991,200
Bank balances 96,226,154 120,534,652

515,544,863 1,340, 522,237

The Company’s credit risk exposures are categorized under the following headings:

Counterparties

The Company conducts transactions with the following major counterparties:

Trade debts

Piiblic sectors

Banks and other financial institutions

Mutual funds

The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining
sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
defaults. The Company's exposure 5 continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions

concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty
limits that are reviewed and approved by the maﬁment annually.



35.2.1 Credit risk related to trade debtors
Trade debts are essentially due from local and foreign customers against sale of yarn and waste material and
the Company does not expect these counterparties to fail to meet their obligations. The majority of sales to the
Company’s customers are made on specific terms. Customer credit risk is managed subject to established
policies, procedures and controls relating to customer credit risk management, Credit limits are established for
all customers based on internal rating criteria. Credit quality of the customer is assessed  based on an extensive
credit rating. Outstanding customer recelvables are regularly montored and any shipments to foreign customers
are generally covered by letters of credit.
Trade debts are generally on 60 to 80 days credit terms,

Impairment losses
The aging of trade debts at the reporting date was; 2022 2021
Gross Impairment Gross Impairm
sn—————— 1| .12
Not yet due 789,963,965 - 1,187,969,418 -
Past due for;
- more than 3 months but less than 1 year 1,512,690 1,999,217 315,076 1,800,341
- more than 1 year but less than 2 years 49,676 117,506 247321 105,817
-maore than 2 years 9,445 399,812 1,436 360,040
791,535,776 2,516,535 1,188543325] 2,266,198
Concentration of credit risk

Trade debts consist of a large number of diversified customers, spread across geographical areas. Ongoing
credit evaluaticn is performed on the financial condition of accounts recelvable where appropriate. The Company
does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparly ar any group of counterparties
having similar characteristics.

35.2.2 Credit risk related to bonks and other financiol institutions
Credit risk on balances  with banks |5 managed by management In accordance  with the Company’s  policy.
Excess funds are placed in deposits with reputable banks and financial institutions.

Rating Long term Short Term

Baonk Name o Lotn:
The Bank of Punjab PACHA Al Al+
Askari Bank Limited PACRA A Al+
Allied Bank Limited PACRA Aty Al+
Banklslami Pakistan Limited FACRA A Al
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA A+ Al+
Bank Al Habib Limited PACRA, AdA Al+
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA Al Al+
Habib Bank Limited Vis AdA A-1+
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA Ab+ Al+
United Bank Limited WIS AdA A1+
Natignal Bank of Pakistan PACRA AdA Al+
MCE Bank Limited PACRA A, Al+

35.3 Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk Is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its Anancial obligations as thay fall due,
Management closely monitors the Company's liquidity and cash flow position. This includes maintenance of
statement of financial position lguidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of the overall
funding mix and avoidance of undue rellance on large individual customer.

The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of

bank overdrafts and bank loans.



35.3.1 Liguidity risk table
The following tables detzil the Company's remaining cantractuz| maturity for its financial liabilinies. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial lizbilifie: based on the earliest date on which the Company can be
requited to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash Naws,

3 months - 1 More than 5
Particulars 1-3 months Frizh 1-35years Total

Lang term financing = 159,788 605 676,824,133 206,822,271 1,042,935, 008
shaort term borrowings

Trade and other payables - 264 426,946 - - 26,426,946
Accrued mark up 8,320,237 - - - 8,320,237
Unelaimed dividend 22 758 665 - - - 12 7589 665
2022 31,079,902 423,715,551 676,824,133 106,822,271 1,338,441,856
Lang term financing - 133,102,824 614,350,836 243,183,571 990,637,631
Shart term borrowings . 28,537,798 - - 20,537,798
Trade and other payables - 236,732,077 - - 236,792 077
Acerued mark up 10,266,875 - 10,266,875
Unclaimed dividend 22,183 456 - - - 22,183 456
2021 32,450,331 399,432,659 614,350,836 243,183,571 1,289,417 837

2022 2021

Off Statement of financial position items Rupees

Letters of credit 1,250,236,942 432,634,355
Bank guarantees 201,481,302 164,921,302
Foreign ills discounted 1,182,441,108 587,060,000
In land bills purchased 50,785,020 98,672,017
Off Statement of financial pesition gap 654 544 372 1,283,287,674

35.4 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices will affect the Company’s ‘income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing returns.

35.4.1 Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
the changes in foreign exchange rates,
Exposure to currency risk

The Company |5 exposed to currency risk on trade debts which are denominated in currency other than the
functional currency of the Company. The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk i as follows:

2022 2021
Rupees Us Doltar Rupees Us Dollar
Trade debts 254,322,451 1,242,090 795,989,799 5,053,903
254,322,451 1,242,080 795,989,799 5,053,903
The following US Dollar exchange rates were applied during the year:
Average rate 179.13 160.24
Statement of financial position rate 204.75 157.50

Sensitivity analysis - foreign currency

At June 30, 2022, If the Rupee had weakened [strengthened by 10% (2021 10%) against the U5 Dollar withall
other variables held constant, profit for the year would have been lower fhigher by Rs. 27.79 million [2021: Rs.

79.6 million), as a result of foreign exchange gains /losses on translation of foreign currency trade debts, Profit /
(loss) s less sensitive to movement in Rupee [ forgign currency exchange rates in 2022 than 2021 because of
high recovery from export debtors, m




35.4.2

35.4.3

35.4.48

@5.5

35.5.1

Interest rate risk
Interest J mark-up rate risk arises [rom the possibility that change: in interest / mark-up rates will effect the value
of financial Instruments. The Company has significant amount of interest based financial assets and financial
liabilities which are largely based on variable interest / mark-up rates;, therefore the Company has to manage the
related finance cost which exposes it to the risk of 3 month and & month KIBOR, Simce the impact on interest
rate exposure is sipgnificant to the Company, management is considering the alternative arrangement to manage
interest rate exposure in future,

2022 2021
Effective Effective

Fixed rote fnstruments Interest Rate Rupees Interest Rate Rupees
Financial assets:

Deposit Accounts 6% - 12% 134,432 5.50% - 6.25% 142,643
= Term finance certificate 13.56% 100,000,000 : .
Variable rate instruments
Fingncial ligbilities:
- Long term financing 3% - 2.28% 1,042,935,008 1.25%-8B.21% 990,637,631
- Short term barrowings 7.86% - 15.06% - 7.81% - B.69% 29,537,798

1,143,069,440 1,020,318,072

Sensitivity analysis - interest rote

If interest rates had been 100 basis  points higher [/ lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Company's prnﬂt,r’lcis for the year ended lune 30, 2022 would decrease ,.’Im:reaie by Rs, 10.42 million (2021:
A& 10,20 milllon). This is mainly attributable to the Campany's exposure to interest rates on its variable rate

financial instrument.

Crther price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value o future cash flows from a Bnancial instrament will fluctuate dus o
changes in market prices [other than those arising from [nterest rate risk or currency  risk]l, whether those
changos arn caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affectng all
similar financial instruments traded in the market, The Company 5 not materially exposed Lo other price risk on
financial assets and liabilities.

Eqqueity shore price risk

The Coampany iz also eaxpgosed Lo the eguilty price risk arsing Trom the Muctuaions doe o change in Talr value af
those sguity Instruments.

Lenasitivity analysis - Egulty share grice risk

A 1% increase § decraase in share prices at year end would have increased / decreased proft far the year as

Fiiect on profit o loss 18,803,301 7,350,139

Fenir valives
Fair value is the amount Tor which an asset could be exchanged, or a lisbility setled, bevweesn knowledgeatle
willing partizg= in an arms length transaction other than in a forced or Hguidation sale.

The carmeing values of all fnancial aszets  and liabilities reflected in the onconsofidated Anancial statement
appraximate their fair values
Fair valise hierarchy

Following are [hree lewviels i far value bierarchy that refects  the signilicance  of the inputs used in messurerment

of fair values of financial instruments and man financial aszets.

Lewel 1: Quoted prices {unad justed) in octive market for identical szsets or habilities

L) 2: Inputs other than guoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
lability, sither directhy {i.&. a3 prices) or ndirecthy (e drive from prices).

Ll 5 Inpuls for gsset or Rability thal are ol based an obzervable market data [unobiervable

The Company does not have any other financial instruments to be classified here other than "Other financial
assets” A8 disclosed in nobte 14, that are classified in level 1 and level 2 as per higrarchy stated abowe

The Company fallows the revaluation model for its free hold land, buillding on free hold land, plant and machinerm.

The fTair waluse messuremeant  as al June 30, 2022 was performed by RYE Asdociales  (Privste] Limited & Jozeph

Lobo {(Privato) Limited: MMYEK Associatos (Private) Limited & losoph Lobo (Private) Limited both are on panel of
Pakistan Banks Association as “Any Amount’ dsset valuator |tis alko on the panel of State: Bank of Pakistan and
POSSE g appropriate gualificaton and recent experience  in the fair value measurements (0 the relevant
locations, The fair value of the assets  was determined wusing the comparable price method after performing
detailed enguiriees and verilication rom varnous estate agents, broker: Gnd bullders keeping  in diew e location
of the properoy/project, condidon, size, wutlization, and other relevant factors., In esomatng the fair value of free
hold land, building on free hald land and plant and machinery, the highest and best use of these assets i thealr
CUrreEnt uss,

Since the date of last revaluation, there has been no matecial change o the market factors theat derive Fair value
of these proporties, thorofore, management  belicves that the carrying walue of these non financial assets

approximate its Fair market value,

Other financial assets  include guoted equity shares, mutual funds and term finance cerbohcate. The equity
shara and funds are valued at each reporting date at their falr value by wusing the prevalling gquoted prices of
shares on Pokistan 5tock Eachange Limited. Term finance certificate are valued at amortised cost.



June 30, 2022 Level 1 level 2 Ltevel 3 Total
Cther financial assets 199,668,983 1,680,661,158 - 1,880,330,141
Free hold land - 981,040,000 981,040,000
Building on free hold land - 500,000,000 500,000,000
Investment property - 2,342,055 2,342 055
Plant and machinery 2,000,000,000 = 2,000,000,000
Tertal 199,668,983 5,164,043,213 - 5,363,712,196
diene 30, J021
Other financial assets 195,959 353 541,024 587 . 835,013,940
Free hold land - 192,914,491 € 152,914,491
Building on free hold land - 194,057,023 - 194,057,023
Investment property - 2,342,065 * 2,342,055
Plant and machinery - 1,190,577,905 £ 1,190,577,905
Tetal 193,583,353 2,220,916,061 - 2,414,905,414
There were no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy during the period.
35.6 Fingncigl instruments by category
The Company  finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a
view to maintain an approximate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied for line items as below:
Assets carried at fair value 2022 2021
Carrying value of other financial assets at fair value through Rupees
profit or loss 1,880,330,141 835,013,940
1,880,330,141 235,013,940

Assets categorized at amartized cost

Trade debts 765,425,459 1,186,277,053
Long term depaosits 6,991,200 6,991, 200
Other financial assets 100,000,000 -
Trade deposits and short Lerm prepaymernits 3,229,226 3,239,226
Loans and advances 14,641,697 921117
Cash and bank balances 96,648,425 120,759,269
S ‘ 3 986,946,007 1,318,187.865

Liabilities carried ot amortized cost
Trade and other payables 264,426,946 226,792,077
Long term financing 1,042,935,008 990,637,631
Shart term borrowings s 29,537,798
Unclaimed dividend 232,759 665 22,183 456
Accrued mark up 8,320,237 10,266,875
1,338,441,856 1,289,417 837

36. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company objectives when managing capital are:
- to safeguard the Company's
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakehalders, and

ability to continue as a going concern, so thatit can continue to provide

to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with

Capital comprises
The Company manages its capital structure
adjustments to it in the light of changes

all components of eguity (i.e. share capital, reserves and unappropriated profit).
by monitoring return on net assets
in economic conditons. In order to maintain or adjust the

and makes

capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue new shares.

The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at June 30, were as follows: 022 B et 2021

Total debt 1,042,935,009 937,994,572
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (96,648,425) (32,624,872)
Met debt 946,286,584 955,369,700
Total equity 8,102,835,103 4,407,739,343
Adjusted capital 9,049,121 687 5,363,109.043
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio 10.46% 17.81%



37

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise assoclated wndertakings, other related proup companies, directors of
the Company and key management personnel. The Company In the normal course of business
earries out transactions with various related parties. Amounts due fram and to related parfies are
ashown under trade debts (note 105, 10.6) and remuneration ol Chiel Cxecutive, director and
excutives  (note 34). The Indus Home Limited and lpdus Dyeing & Manufacturing Co.  Limited s
Ansociatod undnrrnklng based on common directorship, Other significant transactions with related
partios are as follows:

; ; ; T e s C T ; 2022 2021
indus Dyeing & Manufecturing Company Limited L
Purchase of goods and services 130,557,150 445, 813.00
indus Home Limited
Sale of goods and services 98,982 530 295 852, 531
Purchase of goods and services - -
Purchase of term finance certificate 100,000,000 -
All transactons with related parties have been carried out on agreed terms and conditions.

8. PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
Mumber of spindles installed 34,896 34,8596
MNumber of spindles worked 34 802 34,792
Number aof shifts / day 3 3
Installed capacity after
conversion into 20/ count Kgs 11,916,060 11,948,706
Actual production of yarn after
conversion into 20/s count Kgs 11,430,039 11,882,023
Reasons for shortfall
It is difficult 1o describe  precisely the production capacity in spinning unit sinee it fluctuates widely
depending on various factors such as count of yarmn spun, splru:llE:. speed  and bwist eic, |t also
saries according to the pattern of proaduction adopted in a particular year,

38, RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

2021 Cazh flow 2022
tiiitiinieinieiuttetiintetatl 1 111 = | -5 . Rantsteinteitietitieteietetintttiete
Long term finances 990,637,631 52,296,981 1,042,730.570
Short term borrowings 29,537,798 {29,537,738) -
Dividend 22,183 456 576,209 22,759,665
I‘MISSEIBES 23=335=392 I‘Dﬁsé'!ll]‘BS

40,  SEGMENT REPORTING
The Campany™s oore business s manufacturing: and sale of yvarm and it gonerates more than 90% of
its revenue and profit from the production and sale of yvarm, Decision making process is contralized at
head office led by Chief Executive who is continuously involved in day to day operations and regularhy
raviews operating results and assesses its performance and makes necessary declsions about
rasources to be allocated tothe segments. Currently ithas one yarn manufacturing wnit. Cwing to the
similarity In nature of the products and services, nature of the production processes, type or class of
customers  for the products and services, the methods used to distribute the products, the nature of
the regulatory environment all the yarm producing  units are aggregated into a single operating
segment and the Company's performance is evaluated by the management on an overall basis,
therefore these operational segments by location are not separately reportable segments.

- L8 OF ERMPLOYEES
The total number of employess at the year end and average number aof employess during year are as follows;

2022 2021
Total number of employees as at June 30 e 704
Average number of employess during the year F20 FO7T

42, CORRESPONDING FIGURES
The preparation and presentation of these unconsolidated financial statement for the year ended June
30, 2022 Is in accordance with the reguirements of IFR%s.  Following s the major reclassification
made for better presentation:

Reclossified from Reclassified to Rupees
Loans and Advance Advance income tax 113,363,625

43, DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
These wnconsolidated financial statement were authorized for issue on October 04* 2022 by
the Board of Directors of the Company.,

44,  GENERAL

";E' res have been rounded off 1o the nearesl Rupes, except where stated olherawise,
\ ko [ L Lm Liiﬁ_
Shabbir Kausar Konshif Bigz MEan Imran Ahmed
Chilel Finmmcal Offiess Ciwial Executive DOficer Chairman
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Sunrays Textile Mills Limited

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements  of Sunrays Textile Mills Limited (the holding
Company) and its subsidiary (together the Group’), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at June 30, 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information

In our opinion, consolidated financial staternents give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at June 30, 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in acordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan,
Our responsibiliies under those standardsare further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Following is the key audit matter:

Key audit matter 1 How the matter was addressed in our audit
1. Revenue Recognition

Qur audit procedures to address the Key Audit Matter
included the following:

The Group's revenue from contracts comprise of
revenue from local and export sale of yarn which has |+ Obtained an understanding of and assessing the design
been disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial| 314 implementation and operating effectiveriess of
AR controls around recagnition of revenue;
Revenue from the sale is recognized, when control of
goods is transferred to the customer and the
performance obligation is satisfied |.e. on dispatch of
goods (note 4,13).

- Assessed the appropriateness of the Grouds
accounting policies for revenue recognition and
compliance of those policles with applicable
accounting standards;

We identified revenue recognition as key audit matter
as itis one of the key perf  ormance indicators of the
Group and because of the potential risk that revenue
transactions may not have been recognized based on
transfer of control to the customers in line with the
accounting policy adupted and may not have been were recorded in the ﬂpperfiaT.E accounting period.
recognized in the appropriate period.

+ Checked on a sample basis whether the recorded sales
transactions are based on transfer of goods to the
customer, satisfying the performance obligation and

- Assessed the adequacy of disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements,




Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information, The ather infarmation includes the directars report, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated finandal statements does nat cover the ather information and we do not express any
form of assurance opinion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, c onsider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
hased on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilibes of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of thaonsolidated financial statementsin
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requiremeants athe
Companies Act, 2017 and for such in ternal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statementsthat are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing theGroup's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate theGroup or to cease gperations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so,

The Board of D rectors are responsible for oversesing theGroup's financial reporting process,

Auditor 5' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether theonsolidated financial statementsas a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue ana  uditors” report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assu rance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstaterments can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of theseconsolidated
financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with 154s as applicable in Pakist an, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a} Identfy and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the consolidated financial statements whether dug
to fraud ar error, design and perform a udit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from frawd is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may invalve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b} Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control,

c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

d} Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty oxists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required todraw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the conzolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequa te, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtainedup to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause theGroup to cease to continue as a geing caoncern.

e} FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of theconsolidated financial statements including
the disclosures, and whether theconsolidated financial statemeantsreprasent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

fl  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the directon, supervision and performance of thezroup audit. We remain solaly responsible

for our audit opinion.



We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also pravide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding Independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our

report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
henefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resultig in this independent auditots reportis Muhammad Sufyan,

Ww

Chartered Accountant

Place: Multan
Date:October 07, 2022

UDIN: AR202210180PaD6estHu



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property

Long term deposits

Current assets

Stores and spares
Stock in trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances
Advance Income Tax
Trade deposits

Other receivables
Short term investments
Sales tax refundable
Income tax refundable
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Share premium

Surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment

General reserves

Unappropriated profit

Non-current liabiliies

Long term financing
Deferred liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Accrued markup

Short term borrowings

Current portion of long term financing
Current portion of deferred grant
Unclaimed dividend

Provision for taxation

Contingencies and commitments
Total equity and liabilities

Note

5
&

bom o~

11
12
13

14

15

16

17
18

19
20
21
17
17

22

23

2022 2021
—————— -~ RUDEES ~———-oee
4,420,544,944 1,661,109,666

2,342,055 2,342,055
7,011,240 6,991,200
4,429,898,239 1,670,442,921

95,727,359 104,108,416
2,188,607,098 1,649,540,605

765,425,459 1,186,277,053
113,472,576 55,674,069
113,363,625 88,725,852

3,239,226 3,239,226

46,922,498 26,719,292
1,980,330,141 535,013,240

72,537,332 119,270,292

20,366,823 107,472,573

97,675,556 120,759,269
5,497,667,692 4,296,800,587

9,927,565,931

5,8967,243,508

207,000,000 207,000,000
3,600,000 3,600,000
2,131,048,389 269,214,931
612,000,000 612,000,000
5,155,596,805 3,315,924,412
8,109,245,194 4,407,739,343
883,441,966 854,634,313
76,464,325 156,936,701
959,906,291 1,011,571,014
515,037,944 261,784,169
8,320,237 10,266,875

- 29,537,798
159,288,605 133,102,824
204,437 2,696,056
22,759,665 22,183,456
152,803,558 88,361,973
858,414,446 547,933,151

9,927,565,931

5,967,243,508

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

b

Shabbir Kausar

Chiled Financial Offices

ity dee g

Chial Execulive Oficer

Mian Imran Ahmed
Chalrman




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note
Revenue from Contracts - net 24
Cost of sales 25
Gross profit
Distribution cost 26
Administrative expenses 27
Other expenses 28
Finance cost 29
Other income a0
Profit before taxation
Taxation 31
Profit for the year
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
MNon-controlling interest
Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 32

2022 2021

---------- — RUPEES -==mmmmmmmmmnn
9,757,681,828 8,640,883,390
(7,157,317,960) (7,059,086,333)
2,600,363,868 1,581,797,057
(185,305,345) (140,826,188)
(197,955,543) (168,520,186)
(150,360,109) (65,713,449)
(65,914,806) (64,116,279)
69,101,147 06,422,462
(530,438,663) (342,753,640)
2,069,925,206 1,239,043,417
(152,947,047) (B8,879,158)

1,916,978,158

1,150,164,261

llﬁiﬁrg?srj-EB E
1,916,978,158 1,150,164,261
92.61 55.56

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Xg

Shabbir Kansar
Chilef Financal Offfcer

| L fesda ﬂ‘fl—
Kashil Riaz

G el Execulive Olcar

Mian Imran Ahmed

Chalrman




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021
Note woeceeee- RUpeeEs

Profit for the year 1,916,978,158 1,150,164,261

Other comprehensive income - net of tax

Items that will not be reclassified to consolidated statement of profit or loss

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation - gratuity 18.2 (7.848,937) 3,747,996
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 16.1 1,895,876,630
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,805,005,851 1,153,912,257

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 3,805,005,851

Mon-controlling Interest - a
3,805,005,851 1,153,912,257

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

e | L wsn -

Shabbir Kausar Kashil Riaz Wian Imran Ahmed

Chia! Financial Officer Cheal Execulive Officer Chalrman
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Unrealized loss on re-measurement of
other financial assets-net
Realized loss on disposal of other financial assets-net
Fravision for staff retirement benefits - gratuity
Reversal of deferred tax liability
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment- net
Bargain purchase gain on acquisition of subsidiary
Dividend income
Gain on remeasurement of (GIDC)
Interest income
Finance cost
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital
Ch es in working capita
(Increase) / decrease in current gssets
Stores and spares
Stock in trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances (excluding advance income tax |
Trade depasits and short term prepayments
Sales tax refundable
Income tax refundable
Other receivables
Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Finance cost paid
Stafl retirement benefits - gratuity paid
Income taxes paid

T h genera Y

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to property, plant and equipment

Additions to capital work in progress

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of subsidiary

Payment for purchase of short term investments
Proceeds from dispasal of short term investments
Dividend income

Interest income

Net cash used in investing activities

g octivi

2022 2021
= RUpEES e
2,069,925,206 1,239,043,417
159,944,818 168,554,893
26,556,585 {50,483,705)
15,258,117 (5,746,619)
35,074,628 19,194,484
- 15,092,718
(914,089) {343,434)
{58,639,990) (27,831,814)
- (7,524,837
(2,375,506) (617,125)
65,914,806 64,116,279
2,310,744,575 1,413,454,257
8,381,057 [ 7.434,900)
(5329,066,493) 174,148,506
420,851,594 {843,615,730)
(57,798,507) {18,168,419)
- 482,496
46,732,960 (12,149,164)
87,105,750 0,334,435
(20,203,206) 10,427,114
182,788,864 905,948
128,792,019 {686,069,714)
2,439,536,594 727,384,543
(67,861,444) (73,479,515
(52,726,593) (11,353,020)
{113,143,235) (90,636,140
2,205,805,321 551,915,868
(372,072,742) (20,705,045)
(655,349,208) -
4,428,752 2412974
383,784 -
{6,153,345,498) {3,570,681,594)
4,966,214,991 3,201,125,025
58,639,990 27,831,814
2,375,506 617,125
{2,148,724,426) (359,399,701}




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

£ CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term finances obtained
Repayment of long term finances
Short term borrowings - net
Dividends paid

Net cash used in finoncing activities

Net |[decrease) / increase in cash and cash

equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2022 2021
-------- — RUPEEE ~mmmmme==
189,094,037 70,162,290
(136,797,056) (48,666,526)
(29,537,798) 10,685,093
(102,923,791) (136,562,627)
(80,164,608) (104,381,770)
{23,033,?13] 88,134 397
120,759,269 32,624,872
97,675,556 120,759,269

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.

25

Shabbir Iﬁlu:iur

Chiet Financial Officer

| L ash Hf-

Kashif Riaz
Chisf Exsoutive Oficar

Mdian Imran Ahmed
Chairman



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

THE GROUP AND [TS OPERATIONS

The Group consists of Sunrays Textile Mills Limited (the Holding Company) and its subsidiary
namely Embes Industries (Private) Limited. Brief profile of the Holding Company and
Subsidiary are as follows:

Sunroys Textile Mills Limited

Sunrays Textile Mills Limited "the Company" was incorporated in Pakistan on August 27, 1987
a5 a public limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (Now Companies

Act 2017) and its shares are quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company s
principally engaged In trade, manufacture and sale of yarn. The registered office of the
Company s situated at Office no. 508, 5th floor, Beaumont Plaza, Beaumont Road, Civil Lines
Quarters, Karachi. The mill site is located at Khanpur Shumall khewat no. 359, District
Muzaffargarh, Dera Ghazi Khan Division, in the province of Punjab.

m in i Prii Lirni

Embee |ndustries (Private} Limited (the company) was incorporated in Pakistan under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) as a private limited
company on 16th April, 1985, The principal business of the Company is manufacturing and
szale of ice. The registered office and works of the company are located at Riaz Cofton Factory,

Factory Area, Faisalabad in the province of the Punjab.

Bosis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding Company

and its subsidiary.

Subsidiary company is fully consolidated from the date on which more than 50% of voting
rights are transferred to the Group or power to control them is established and excluded from
consolidation from the date of disposal or when the control is lost.

The financial statements of the subsidiary are prepared for the same reporting year as of the
Holding Company for the purpose of consolidation, using consistent accounting policies. The
accounting policies of the subsidiaries  have been changed to conform with accounting policies
of the Group, where reguired.

The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary companies are consolidated on a
line by line basis and carrying value of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated
against the subsidiary companies’ shareholders’ equity in these consolidated financial statements.
All intra-group balances, transactions and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.

Business combination

Acquisition of business s accounted for using the acguisition method. The consideration

transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as a sum
of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Holding Company, liabilities
incured by the Holding Company to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Company in exchange for the control of the acquiree. Acguisition-related costs

are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisihon date, the identified assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognized at their fair value.

Goodwill is initially measured at acguistion date as the excess. of the sum of the consideration

transferred and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if
any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, net amounts at the acquisition-date of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred and the fair value
of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), excess s recognized

immediately in the staternent of profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.



1.5

2.2

2.3

2.4

Acguisition of Subsidiary

On July 26, 2021, the Group acguired 100% shareholding of EIL {(17.25 Million5Shares) against
cash consideration of Rs. 190.85 Million.

For 339 days period ended June 30, 2022 EIL contributed profit of Rs, 300,393 to the Group,
Management estimates if the acquisitiion had occurred on Jul 01, 2021 then consolidated profit
would have been Rs. 1,915.67 Million.

Comparative of these consolidated financial statements are the same as per Sunrays Textile
mills Limited unconsalidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed: Rs.
Property, plant and eguipment 197,492,977
Long term deposlis 20,040
Other receivables E8,671
Cash and bank balances 383,784
Trade and other payables 66,091
198,021,562
Goodwill:
Goodwill arising from the acquisition has been recognised as follows:
Consideration transferrad 190,850,000
Met assets at the date of acquisition 198,021,562
BASIS OF PRESENTATION {7,171,562)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting
standards applicable in Pakistan comprise af:

= Inernational Financial Reporting Standards  (IFRS's)  issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASE) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Pravisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the
IFRS's, the provisions of and directives issued wunder the Companies Act, 2017 have been
fallowed.

Bosis o asurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention
except indicated in note 4.1, 4.4 and 4.11.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupess, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency.

ignificant occounting estimaotes and judgments

The preparation of conzolidated Ffrnanclal statements in conformity  with IFRS  requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making
the judgment about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
ather resources, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and wnderlying assumptions are reviewed on the ongoing basis. Rewisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period inwhich estimates are revised,

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the significant . judgement made by the
management in applying accounting policlies include;

- useful life and residual values of depreciable assets (note 4.5 and 5.1)

- allowance for expected credit losses;

- provision for current tax and deferred tax (note 4.2 and 31)

- revaluation of assets pertaining to freehold land, bullding on frechold land, plant and
machinery and cost value of investment property;

- staff retirement benefits (note 4.1 and 18.1)

- net realizable value of stock-in-trade (note 4.8 and 8)



3.1.1

3.2

3.3

STANDARDS, INTERFRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS ADOPTED DURING THE YEAR

The following amendments toexisting standards have been published thatare applicable tothe

Group's consolidated financial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the

following dates:

New accounting standards [amendments and IFRS iInterpretations that are effective

for the year ended June 30, 2022

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June

30, 2022, These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the

Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's

consolidated financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Standards or Interpretations with no significant impact Effective from  accounting
period beginning on or after:

January 01, 2021

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments
to IFRS 9, 1A% 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

Amendment to IFRS 16 'Leases’ - Covid-19 related rent
concessions extended beyond lune 30, 2021

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting
periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards,
interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are
not expected to have significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements
other than certain additional disclosures.

April 01, 2021

Effective from accounting
period beginning on or after:

A d ts to IFRS 3 'Busi Combinati -
mendments to usiness Combinations lanuary 01, 2022

Reference to the conceptual framework

Amendments to 1AS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ -

Proceeds before intended use lanuary 01,2022

Amendments to IAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities

and Contingent Assets’ - Onerous Contracts — cost of lanuary 01, 2022
fulfilling a contract
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle January 01, 2022

{related to IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and |AS 41)

Amendments to 1AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’

January 01, 2022
- Classification of liabilities as current or non-current das

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’

. J 01, 2023
- Disclosure of accounting policies SR

Amendments to 1AS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors’ - Definition of accounting January 01, 2023
estimates

Amendments to "IAS 12 Income Taxes' - deferred tax related
to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and 28 - Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Deferred Indefinetly
Venture

January 01, 2023

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs,

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has also issued the following standards which have not
been adopted locally by the SECP:

- IFRS 1 = First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

= IFR5 17 = Insurance Contracts



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Staff retirement benefits

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme  covering all its employees. The cost of
providing benefit is determined uwsing the projected wunit credit method, with actuarial valuation.
Actuarial gains and losses  are recognized immediately as they arise in other comprehensive

income. Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already

vested. Otherwise it is amortized on a straight line basis over the average period until the
amended benefits become vested,

Details of the scheme are given in the note 18.1 to these consolidated financial statements,

Taxation
urrent

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of taxation after
taking into account applicable tax credit, rebates and exemption available, if any. For income
cavered under final tax regime, taxation |s based on applicable tax rates under such regime.
Deferred

Deferred  tax is calculated  using the liability method for all temporary differences  at the
statement of finanacial position date between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.  In this regard, the effects on deferred
taxation of the portion of income subject to final tax regime is also considered in accordance
with the reguirement of "Technical Release - 27" of Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan,
Deferred income tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry
forward of unused tax losses and credits, if any, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which such temporary differences and tax losses and credits can

be utilized. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to
apply to the pericd when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date,

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the
consolidated financial statement in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company's shareholders,

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Pakistani Rupees are recorded at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each statement of financial position date,
monetary assets and liabilides that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the statement of financial position date except where forward exchange
contracts have been entered into for repayment of liabilities, in that case, the rates contracted

Gains and losses arising on retranslation are included in profit or loss for the period.

Praperty, plant and equipment

Property, plant and eguipment except free hold land, building on freehold land, plant and
machinery and capital work in progress  are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Revaluation

Frea hold land, bullding on free hold land and plant and machlpery are stated at revalued
amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.  Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity so
that the fair value and carrying wvalue do not differ materially at the statement of financial
position date. Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such assets s credited in
‘Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and eguipment'. A decrease in the carrying amount
arising surplus on revaluation is charged to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the
balance, if any, held in the surplus. on revaluation account relating to previously revalued
assets. To the extent of incremental depreciation charged on revalued assets, on disposal of
revalued assets and the related surplus on revaluation (net of deferred tax) is transferred

directly to unappropriated profit, E




4.6

4.7

Depreciation is charged to income applying reducing balance method to write-off the cost over
the estimated remaining useful life of assets. The useful life and depreciation method are
reviewed periodically to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consistent with
the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property, plant and equipment. Rates
of depreciation are stated in note 5 In respect of additions and disposals during the year,
depreciation is charged from the month of acquisition up to the month preceding the disposal Respectively |

Gains [ losses on disposal of operating assets, if any, are recognized In consolidated
statement of profit and loss account, as and when incurred. Assets are derecognized when
disposed or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Mormal repairs and maintenance are charged to consolidated statement of profit and loss
account as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized and assets
replaced, if any, other than those kept as stand-by are refired.

Capital work-in-progress  (CWIP) is stated at cost less any recognized impairment loss. All
expenditures connected to the specific assets incurred during installation and construction
period are carried under CWIP. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets
are available for use.

Investment property

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is
valued using the cost method i.e. at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any identified

impairment loss.
Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property, calculated as difference between the

proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss,

Stores and spares

These are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, cost is determined on the basis of
moving average cost less allowance for obsolete and slow moving items, except for items in
transit which are valued at cost incurred to the statement of financial position,

Stock in trade
These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined by applying the

Raw material

- At mills Weighted average cost

= In transit At cost incurred to the statement of financial position
Woark in process Average manufacturing cost
Finished goods Average manufacturing cost
Waste MNet realizable value

Met realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade debts

Trade debts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value, which is usually the
original invoiced amount and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less allowance for expected credit losses.



4.10

4.11

4.11.1

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is any
indication that assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such
assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable
amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written
down to their recoverable amount and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in
consolidated statement of profitand loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's

fair value less costs to sell and value in use. )
Where impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets is increased

to the revised recoverable amount but limited to the extent of carrying. amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognized in prior periods. Reversal of
impairment loss is recognized as income,

Financiagl Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised inthe Company’s statement of financial
position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition orissue of financial assets and financial liabilities
{other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on inital recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately jn profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace,
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised
cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets
al Debt instruments measured at amaortised cost

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective Is to hold financial assets

in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured

at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortization using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount,
adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

The effective interest method is 2 method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period, Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
As at reporting date, the Company carries cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and
sales tax refund bonds at amortized cost. m




B} Debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCH)

Debt instruments that meet specified conditions and are measured subsequently at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

As at reporting date, the Company does not hold any debt instrument elassified as at FVTOCI,
€l Equity instruments designated as ot FUTOC!

On initial recognition, the Company may make an irrevocable election (on an
instrument -by -instrument  basis) to designate  investments in eguity instruments as at FVTOCI,
As at reporting date, the Company does not hold any equity instrument classified as at

d]  Financfal assets meoasured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL)

By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair walue through profitor loss (FYTPL).
As at reparting date, the Company carries investments in shares of listed companies and units
of mutual funds classified as at FVTPL.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial
azzets that are measured at amortised cost or at FVTPL, as well as on financial guarantes
contracts. The amount of expected credit losses s updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Company always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. For all other financial

instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has
not increased significantly since inital recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance

for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12- month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12 month
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a
fimancial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. IFRS 9 does
not define what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit
risk of an asset has significantly increased the Company takes into account qualitative and
guantitative reasonable and supportable forward looking information, The historical loss rates
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-lcoking information on macroeconomic  factors
affecting the ability of the customers ta settle the receivables.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probahility of default, loss given

default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment  of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information as described above. As for the exposure at default, for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets” gross carrying amount at the reporting date;
for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the
reporting date, topether with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future
by default date determined based on historical trend, the Company's understanding of the
specific future financing needs of the debtars, and other relevant forward-looking information,

Definition of default:

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience indicates thatfinancial assets that meet either
of the following criteria are generally not recoverable;

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor; or

- information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates thatthe debtoris
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Company, in full (without taking into accounl any
collateral hald by the Company). E



4.11.2

4.11.3

4.11.4

4.12

4.13

Write -off policy

The Company writes off financial assets when there is information indicating that the debtor is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Financial assets
written off may sfill be subject to enforcement activifes under the Company's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made against
financial assets written-off are recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial ossets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company  neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the
asset’s  carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recoghised In profit or loss,

Financial liabilities

Subseguent measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities that are not

- contingent consideration of an acguirer in a business combination,

- held Tfor?trading, or

- designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability

and of allocating interest expense owver the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
recelved that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate)
a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilites when, and only when, the Company's

obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Off setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount reported in the statement
of financial position, if the Company has a current legal enforceable right to set off the
recognized amount and the Company also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Trade and other pavables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed 1o
the company.

Revenue recognition

The Company is in the business of sale of goods., Revenue from contracts with customers s
recognised when control of the goods is transferred to the customer and the performance
obligation is satisfied under the contract at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods. The Company has generally
concluded that itis the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the
goods or services before transferring them to the customer.




4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

- Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

- Export rebate is recognized on accrual basis at the time of making the Export sales,

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate
performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g.,
right of returns, volume rebates). In determining the transaction price for the sale of poods, the
Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing
components, non cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost. For the purposes of cash flow statement, cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash and
cheques in hand, balances with banks on current, saving and deposit accounts,

Borrowing cost

Barrowing costs directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or production of gualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take & substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such Hme as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are charged to income in the period in which these are incurred.

Borrowings

Loans and borrowings are initially recorded at the proceeds received. In subseguent periods,
borrowings are stated at amortized cost using the effective yield method. Finance cost is
accounted for on an accrual basis and are included in mark-up accrued on leans to the extent
of amount remaining unpaid, if any.

Earning Per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data. Basic EPS s
calculated by dividing the profitor loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.
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5.3

5.4

5.4.1

5.5

5.6

2022 2021

Depraciztion for the year has been allocated as under: Note e RUpees —------—

Cost of goods sold 25 145,983,553 156,070,442

Administrative expenses 27 13,961,265 12,484,451
159,944,818 168,554,893

capital Work in P

Machinery in transit 456,936,184 -

Building 198,413,024 .

5.4.1 655,349,208 -

M : ital ki

Opening balance - 28,751,200

Additions during the year 655,349,208 -

Transferred to operating assets - (28,751,200)
655,349,208 -

The Company has its freehold land, building on freehald land and plant and machinery revalued on Juneg
30, 2022 by loseph Lobo (Private) Limited & MYK Associate (Private) Limited, independent valuers,
The basis used for the revaluation of these assets were as follows:

Freehold land

Fair market value of the land was assessed through inguiries in the vicinity of land, recent market deals
and information obtained through estate agents and property dealers of the area.

Building on freehold land

Fair market value of the building was assessed mainly through new construction value, depreciation
cost factors, state of infrastructure, current trends in prices of real estate n the vicinity and information
abtained through estate agents, builders and developers.

Plant and machinery

Fair market value of the plant and machinary was assessed through inguiries of local authorized
dealers who deal in old and new similar type of plant and machineries. Replacement wvalue was then
ascertained from competitive rates of the plant and machinery and thereafter, an average depreciation
factor was applied on the replacement value of the plant and machinery.

Forced sale value of the above items of property, plant and equipment is as follows: Rupees
Freehold fand 743,082,000
Building on freehold land 375,000,000
Plant and machinery 1,500,000,000
2,618,082,000

Had there been no revaluation the related figures of freehold land, building on freehold land and plant
and machinery as at the statement of financial position date would have been as follows;

2022 2021
P Rupees
Freehold land 300,530,730 79,368,530
Building on freehold land 366,214,505 41,745,178
Plant and machinery 1,996,642 875 1,187,220,780

2,663,388,110  1,308,334,488

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment property comprises  of agricultural land held by the Company for capltal appreciation
purpases, and is not currently in use by the Company for business purposes. The fair value as at June
30, 2019 is Rs. 48.49 million. The forced sale wvalue has been assessed as atJune 30, 2019 is Rs,
37.19 million. The investment property is located at Shujabad, District Multan.
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Note
STORES AND SPARES

Stores
Spares

STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw material

Raw material in-transit
Work in process
Finished goods

Waste

TRADE DEBTS

Foreign - secured and considered good
Local - unsecured 9.1

Bad debts written off 28
Allowance for expected credit losses 2.2

It includes due from associated undertakings relating to sale of yarn

Detail of balances due is a5 follows:

9.5 & 37
9.6 837

Indus Dyeing & Manufacturing Co.
Indus Home Limited

Allowance for expected credit losses

Opening balance as at July 1
Expected credit losses
Closing balance as at June 30

Trade debts are generally on 60 to 90 days credit terms,

2022 2021
..... Rm amauammme
49,392,812 £7,182,421
46,334,547 36,925,995
95,727,359 104,108,416
1,422,495,562 1,235,098,282
511,929,544 249,308,825
49,121,588 40,247,255
105,250,471 33,632,472
55,809,933 91,163,770
2,188,607,098 1,649,540,605
254,322,451 795,989 700
513,619,543 393,054,000
767,941,994 1,189,043 880
- (500,638)
|2,516,535) (2,266,198)
765,425,459  1.186,277,053

In normal course of business.

2022 2021
—_— Rupees ——----—
541,354 -
13,771,486 14,222 881
2,266,198 2,266,198
250,337 -
2,516,535 2,266,198

As at year end, trade receivables of Rs. 1,030,457 (2021: Rs. 573,833) were past due.

The maximum ocutstanding balance during the year due from Indus Dyeing & Manufacturing Co. Limited

{assoclated undertaking) is Rs. 0.54 million (2021 Bs. Nil).

The maximum outstanding balance during the year due from Indus Home Limited is Rs.

(2021: Rs. 14.22 million).

=
g
1

LOANS AND ADVANCES
Considered good
Due from employees 10.1
Advances :
To suppliers / services
To contractors
Letter of credit margin

This are interest free lpans, secured against gratulty not more than Rs

1,000,000) to a parson,

71.82 million
2022 2021
Rupees -=-=ceceee
13,533,659 25,405,492
85,267,713 29,287,904
29,507 59,556
14,641,697 921,117
113,472,576 55,674,069

1,000,000 (2021: Rs.



11. TRADE DEPOSITS

Bank guarantee margin

12. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Cotton claims - considered good

Rebate claims
Other

13. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Meausred at fair value through profit & loss

Meausred at amortised cost

131

13.1 Market value of other financial assets

2022 2021
Number of units
215,675 215,675
294,101 294,101

4,364,720 1,096,443

107,284 107,284

111,061,590 30,104,702

134 430,416

210,934 1,797,784
115 -
1,332 -
1,291,841 -
27 -

- 34,298

758 758

MNumber of shares

138,000

275,000 275,000

- 16,500

- 190,353

- 164,000

- 18,262
69,962 -
4,150 .
54,500 -

91,914 91,914
43,500 -

90,000 44,225

+ 25,000

374,897 87,300

. 32,300

- 13,000

- 82,500

32,920 32,920

- 26,400

Investments in units of mutual funds
MNAFA Stock Fund

ABL Stock Fund

MCB Cash Management Optimizer
LIBL Stock Advantage Fund
Mational Investment Trust

Alfalah GHP Money Market Fund
First Habilbx Cash Fund

ABL Cash Fund

HEL Money Market Fund

LIBL Liguidity Plus Fund

MEBP Mahana Amadni Fund

MAFS Money Market
Mafa lslamic Energy Fund

2021

Investment in ordinary shares of listed companies

Engro Fertilizer Limited

Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited
Mishat Mills Limited

United Bank Limited

Bank 4| Habib Limited

Pak International Bulk

Terminal Limited

Systems Limited

Highnoon Labortaries Limited
Pakistan Aluminium Beverages

il and Gas Development
Company Limited

Tarig Glass Industries Limited
Lucky Cement Limited

Sul Southern Gas Company Limited
Habib Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

Kot Addu Power Company Limited
Mishat Chunian Power Limited
Engro Corporation Limited

Amreli Steels Limited

Rupees -———
3,239,226 3,239,226
44,522,812 24,314,962
2,122,182 2,122,182
277,504 282,148
46,922,498 26,719,292
1,880,330,141 835,013,940
100,000,000
1,980,330,141 835,013,940
2,975,581 3,460,138
3,812,015 4,663,819
442,145,300 110,695,934
7,456,205 8,424,975
1,072,155,275 290,221,369
13,155 42,283,410
21,368,813 180,928,251
1,177 .
136,918 -
130,589,764 -
271 .
- 339,504
6,684 7,187
- 9,697,260
10,395,000 7,906,250
. 1,539,450
. 23,261,137
. 11,499,680
- 207,822
23,077,665 -
2,198,961
2,033,685 <
7,230,874 g,734,587
4,515,735 -
41,313,600 38,185,634
A 332,500
34,243,092 10,682,901
. 5,162,509
- 576,550
. 1,239,151
8,463,403 9,698,561
- 1,146,816
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14.1

15.

15.1.
is5.2.

2022 2021 2022 2021
o Rupees ----- e
Cresent Steel and Allied products
- 24,200 Limited - 2,032,316
- 16,700 Engro Foods Limited - 1,921,836
1,200 2,200 GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited 285,996 364,474
- 205,500 Fauji Cement Company Limited - 4,726,500
- 7,540 Kohinoor Textile Limited - 567,008
- 59,000 D.G Khan Cement Company Limited - 8,136,480
= 65,600 Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited - 3,081,888
Mughal iron & Steel Industries
104,004 29,000 Limited 5,994,791 3,027,600
15,300 20,000  Bestway Cement Limited 1,942,794 3,230,400
= 3,200 EFU General Insurance Limited - 371,168
177.140 152,140 Hub Power Company Limited 12,075,634 12,120,954
2,568 2,120 Mari Petroleum Company Limited 4,467,652 3,231,707
- 70,400 Pak Elektron Limited - 2468224
239,528 38,397 Meezan Bank Limited 27,061,873 4,431,398
= 89,545 Searl Pakistan Limited - 2,315,808
21,000 21,000  Interloop Limited 9,138,227 1,470,630
42,099 11,100 International Steels Limited 2,498,997 1,036,851
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Health
- 1,400 Care Pakistan Limited - 350,126
- 69,500 Bank Al Falah Limited - 2,236,510
- 4,000 Archroma Pakistan Limited - 2,290,000
19,050 11,950 Pakistan Qilfields Limited 7,730,681 4,706,627
Number of certificates Investment in term finance certificate
1,000 - Habib Bank Limited 100,000,000 -
119,218,243 35,153,627 1,980,330,141 835,013,940
CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note
Cashin hand 444,372 224,577
Cash at bank
- Current accounts 87,115,273 115,392,049
- Deposit accounts 14.1 1,026 97
- Saving accounts 14.1 133,406 141,664
- Term deposit receipls 14.1 9,981,479 5,000,000
97,231,184 120,534,682
97,675,556 120,759,269

Effective markup rate in respect of saving, deposit accounts and term deposits receipts ranges from
6% to 12% (2021: 5.50% to 6.25%) per annum.

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

2022 2021 2022 2021
--—--— Number of shares ----—--- Rupees
Authorized copital
50,000,000 50,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 500,000,000 500,000,000
Issued, subscribed and pafd up capital
Ordinary shares of &5, 10 each
20,700,000 20,700,000  fully paid in cash 207,000,000 207,000,000

The Company has only one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed incomae.

Shareholders are entitled to cast vote proportionate to the paid up value of shares carrying voting rights.
All shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.
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16.1

17

17.1

17.2

2022 2021
SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF Nple e Rupegy ==
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16.1 2,131,810,253 269,214 931
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Opening balance 269,214 931 304,281,512
Surplus arising on revaluation
- Land 744,963,309 -
- Building 325,348,678 -
- Plant & Machinery 816,326,507 -
1,896,638,494 -
Transferred to unappropriated profit on account of !
Incremental depreciation (16,328,761) {19.073,555)
Revaluation surplus due to disposal of revalued assets (18,476,275) {15,993,026)
(34,805,036) (35,066,581}
Closing balance 2,131,048,389 269,214,931

Related deferred tax lighility
Opening balance
Revarsal of deferred tax liability

{15,092,718)
15,002,718

Closing batance 2,131,048,389 269,214,931

LONG TERM FINANCING

Frormn banking companies - secured

Term finance:

Allled Bank Limited 17.1 3,600,000 =

Allied Bank Limited 17.2 115,304,000 -
118,904,000 z

LTFF:

United Bank Limited 17.2 36,933,825 51,707,355

Bank Alfalah Limited 17.4 363,281,250 375,000,000

MCE Bank Limited 17.5 352,405,247 405,907,786

Allied Bank Limited 17.6 104,914,486 79,662,010

Allied Bank Limited 177 66,496,200 78,360,480

Defarred grant 18 - (204.438)
924,031,008 990,433,194

1,042,935,008 990,433,193

Less: Current portion (159,288,605) 1133,102,824)

Less: Current portion of deferred grant (204,437) {2,696,056)
883,441,966 854,634,313

Allied Bonk Limited - Term Finance

This finance has been obtained from Allied Bank Limited for BME. The |loan was repayable in 16 equal
half yearly installments commencing from May 25, 2022 with 3 months grace period from the date of
1st disbursement. [tcarrled mark up at the rate of 6 Months KIBOR + 0.50%. The finance was secured
against first parl passu charge over all present and future fixed assets of the company for Rs. 134
million inclusive of 25% Margin,

Allied Bank Limited - Term Finance (Rooters)
This finance has been obtained from Allled Bank Limited for BMR. The loan was repayable in 16 equal
half yearly installments commencing from June 14, 2024 with 2 years grace period. |t carried mark up at

the rate of & Months KIBOR + 0.75%. The finance was secured against first pari passu charge over
present and future fixed assets of the company for Rs.800 Million inclusive of 25% margin.
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17.4

17.5

17.6
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18.

18.1

United Bank Limited - LTFF

This finance has been obtained from United bank Limited for BMR. The loan is repayable in 10 equal
half yearly installments commencing from February 18, 2019 with 11 months grace pericd. It carries

markup at flat rate of 3%. The finance |s secured against first pari passu charge amounting to Rs. 125
million over all present and future fixed assets of the Company with 25% margin.

Bank Alfalah Limited- LTFF

This finance has been obtained from Bank Alfalah Limited for BMR. The loan is repayable in 32 egual

guarterly installments commencing from June 18, 2021 with 2 years grace period. |tcarries markup at
fiat rate of 3%. The finance is secured against first pari passu charge amounting to Rs. 500 million over

all present and future fixed assets of the Company with 25% margin.
MCB Bank Limited - LTFF

This finance has been obtained from MCBE Bank Limited for BMR. The loan is repayable in 16 equal half
yearly installments commencing from April 18, 2020 with 2 years grace period. It carries markup at rate
of 2.5%. The finance is secured against first parl passu charge amounting to Rs. 600 million over all
present and future fixed assets of the Company with 25% margin.

Allied Bank Limited - LTFF {salaries and wages)

This finance has been obtained from Allied Bank to pay salaries and wages under 5BP's Refinance
Scheme for payment of wages and salaries. The |oan is repayable in 8 equal guarterly installments
commencing from lJan 31, 2021. ltcarries mark up at flat rate of 1.25%. The finance is secured against
first pari passu charge amounting to Rs. 152 million over all present and future fixed assets of the

Allied Bank Limited - LTFF
This finance had been obtained from Allied Bank for BMR. The loan is repayable in 16 equal half yearly
installments commencing from May 25, 2022 with 3 months grace period. It carries mark up at the rate

of SBP + 0.50%. The finance is secured against first parl passu charge over all present and future fixed
assets of the company for Rs. 134 Million inclusive of 25% Margin,

Note 2022 2021
- Rupees -----——
DEFERRED BILITIE
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity 13.1 76,464,325 86,267,353
Provision for Gas Insfrastructure
Development Cess (GIDC) 18.4 - 70,464,910
Deferred Grant 18.5 - 204,438

76,464,325 156,936,701

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity
Liability recognized in the stotement of financial position

Present value of defined benefit obligation 76,464,325 86,267,353
76,464,325 86,267,353
Movement in the net liability
Opening balaznce 86,267,353 B2,173,885
Charge for the year 35,074,628 19,194,484
Payment made during the year (52,726,593) {11,353,020)
Actuarial {gain) / loss from changes in experience adjustments 7,226,427 (4,085,344)
Actuarial loss / (gain) from changes in financial assumptions 622,510 341,348
76,464,325 86,267,353
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2022 2021

h in ent e of defined bencfit obligati Nate ———— Rupees =
Opening defined benefit obligation 86,267,353 82,173,885
Current service cost 16,229,063 12,692,207
Past service cost 12,855,159 -
Interest cost 5,990,406 6,502,277
Benefits pald (52,726,593) 111,353,020}
Actuarial (gain} f lass from changes in experience adjustments 7,226,427 (4,089,344
Actuarial loss / (gain) from changes in financial assumptions 622,510 341,348

76,464,325 86,267,353

hor ar
Current service cost 16,229,063 12,692,207
Past service cost 12,855,159 -
Interest cost 5,990,406 6,502.277

: 35,074,628 19,194,484
Aliocation of charge for the year
Cost of sales 252 31,707,631 14,394 484
Administrative expenses 271 3,366,997 4,800,000

35,074,628 159,194,484
men I Vil I in

other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gain) / loss from changes in experience adjustments 7,226,427 {4,089,344)
Actuarlal loss from changes in financial assumptions 622,510 341,348
Remeasurement gain/loss 7,848,937 {3,747,995)

As per actuarial valuation carried out as at June 30, 2022 by Nauman Associates using Projected Unit
Credit Method, the following significant assumptions have been used for valuation of defined benefit

obligation of the Company: 2022 2021

Discount rate 13.25% 10.00%:
Expected rate of salary increase in future years 12.25% 9.00%
Average expected remaining working life time of employees & years 6 years

Martality rate was based on the State Life Corporation (SLIC) 2001-2005 uitimate mortality rates with 1
year sethack as per recommendation of Pakistan Society of Actuaries {("PSOA).
Staff retirement benefits sensitivity analysis

ncrease/|d se) in defil
benefit obligation
2022 2021
Year end sensitivity analysis (+/- 100 bps) on defined benefit obligation: —————— Rupees ————
Discount rate + 100 bps 72,491,013 81,090,114
Discount rate - 100 bps 81,003,071 82,188,553
Salary Increase + 100 bps 81,160,893 52,371,633
Salary Increase - 100 bps 72,177,986 20,831,626
Maturity Profile
Average duration of liability 6 years & years
Expected contribution for the next year
The expectsd contributson to the gratuity scheme for the next year works owt to Rs. 25549 million.
vision Gos ins wel nt

Cess{GIDC)
Provision for GIOC 70,464,910 84,999 B4
Less: Current portion (70,464,910) 114,534,5939)

- 70,464,910

On Avugust 13, 2020 the Supreme Couwrt of Pokistan (S5CP)  through its order declored GIDC  Act an
intra vires to the constitution and directed oll the industrial and commercial entities to pay the Cess  thot
have become due up to July 31, 2020, Howewer, os o concession, the same waos allowed to be
recovered in twenty four equal monthly installments starting from August 01, 2020,

In fight aof the above staoted order of 5CP  the Company opted fo recognize the Cess as payable in
twenty four equal monthly instaliments in occordance with the provision of 1AS 37,
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18,

18.1

159.2

DEFERRED GRANT

As mentioned in note 17,7, the State Bank of Pakistan [5BP) through circular no. 6 dated April 10, 2020
introduced a 'Refinance Scheme  for Payment of Wages and Salaries to Workers and Employees of
Business Concern (the Refinance Scheme). The purpose of the Refinance Scheme s to provide relief
to dampen the effects of COVID- 19 by providing loans at concessional  interest rates. The Company
obtained financing of Rs. 106.22 million under the Refinance 5cheme. The benefit of below market
interest rates, measured as the difference between the fair value of locan and loan proceeds on the date
of disbursement has been recognised as deferred grant. The deferred grant is amortized over the term
of the loan f.e., 2.5 years. In line with the recognition of interest expense, the grant |s compensatory.

The movement during the year is as follows: 2022 2021
Note = Rupegs -
As at luly 01 2,900,494 -
Recognized during the year 7,604,320
Amortized during the year (2,696,057) (4,703,826)
As at lune 30 204,437 2,900,494
Less: Current partion (204,437) {2,696,056)
MNon current partion - 204,438
TRADE D ¥i
Creditors 175,610,057 47,314,986
Provision for infrastructure cess 12.1 134,662,322 118,362,773
Accrued liabilities B6,BE7 985 47,504,446
Current portion of provision for GIDC 18.4 70,464,910 14,534,939
Sales tax payable 41,243,810 617,573
Advances from customers 3,338,076 2,331,951
Waorkers' Profit Participation Fund 182 545,407 7,212,811
Commission an export sale 1,356,508 22,934,177
Due to employees 908,726 675,695
Income tax deducted at source 20,143 294,818
515,037,944 261,784,169

The provision has been recognized against disputed infrastructure fee levied by the Government of
Sindh through Sindh Finance (Amendment} Ordinance 2001. The Company has contested this issue in
Sindh High Court. The Company filed an appeal in the Supreme Court against the judgement of the
High Court dated September 15, 2008 partly accepting the appeal by declaring the |levy and collection of
infrastructure fee prior to December 26, 2006 as illegal and ultra vires, Additionally, the Government of
Sindh also filed appeal against the part of judgement decided against them. The above appeals were
disposed off in May 2011 with a joint statement of the parties that, during the pendency of the appeals,
another |law came into existence which was nof subject matter in the appeal, therefore, the decision
thereon he first obtained from High Court before approaching the Supreme Court with the right to
appeal, Accordingly, the petition was filed in High Court in respect of the above view, During the
pendency of this appeal an interim arrangement was agreed whereby bank guarantees furnished for the
consignments  cleared upto December 27, 2006 were returned. For consignment  released  after
December 27, 2006, 50% of the value of infrastructure cess is paid in cash and bank guarantees for the
remaining balance was furnished until the final order is passed. Similar arrangements continued for the
consignment released during the current year,

Workers' Profit Participation Fund Rupees

Opening balance 7,212,811 498,284
Payment to the fund {7,212,811) (a98,884)
Charge for the year 28 108,545,407 65,212,811

Payment of the fund from current year liability {108,000,000) {58,000,000)
Closing balance 545 407 7,212,811



20.

ACCRUED MARKUP

Accrued markup on:

- Short term borrowings 806,258 3,572,125
- Long term borrowings 7,423,979 6,694,650
8,320,237 10,266,875

21. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Secured - under morkup arrangements from banking Companies
Running finances (RF) 29,537,798
29,537,798

21.1 Short term faclliies available from commercial banks under mark up arrangements amount to Rs
6,475 Million (2021: Rs. 6475 million) of which facilities aggregating to Rs. 6,475 million { 2021: Rs.
6,446 million) remained unutilized at the year end. The rate of mark up ranges from 7.86% to 15.06%
per annum (2021: 7.81% to 8.69% per annum) payable on quarterly basis. These finances are secured
against pledge of raw material and finished goods and charge on current assets of the Company.

22.  PROVISION FOR TAXATION Note 2022 | punees ... 200k
Opening balance B8,361,973 85,329,951
Provision made during the year 152,803,558 88,361,973

241,165,531 173,691,924
Prior year adjustment 247,019 14,575,535
Adjustments against completed assessments (88,608,992) {99,905,486)

152,803,558 88,361,973

23, CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies
Bank guarantees 201,481,302 164,921,302
Foreign bills purchased 1,182,441,108 587,060,000
In land bills purchased 50,785,020 98,672,017

1,434,707,430 850,653,319

23.1 Bank guarantees
In favor of Bank
Sui Morthern Gas Pipelines Limited MCE Bank Limited 57,061,261 57,061,261
Ministry of Textile MCB Bank Limited 599,574 599,574
Excise and taxation Soneri Bank Limited 23,985,915 23,985,915
Excise and taxation United Bank Limited 110,560,000 83,000,000
Import Licence Fee Habib Bank Limited 174,552 274,552
Excise and taxation MCB Bank Limited 9,000,000 -

201,481,302 164,921,302
Commitments 2022 2021
Under letters of credit for: Rupees ------ e
- Stores and spares 21,388,308 -
- Raw material 239,520,128 351,482,855
- Plant and machinery 989,328,506 81,151,500
1,250,236,942 432,634,355




24,

24.1
25.

25.2

26.

Revenue from Contracts - net
Exports

Yarn

Waste

Rebate Claim

Local
Yarn
Doubling
Waste

Salas tax on local sales
Commission

2022 2021
Mote = = oz Rupees -————

241 B8,741,485,561

75,578,193

7,382,482 618
10,104,732

8,817,063,754

7,392,587,350

1,148,034,887 | 1,587,307,098
9,560,456 10,408,623
397,438,600 240,033,136
1,555,042,943  1,837,748,857
[554,455,787)  (544,643,942)
(59,969,082) {44,808,875)

9,757,681,828

8,640,883,390

It Includes indirect export of Rs. 2.964.31 million { 2020: Rs, 2,126.67 million).

COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed

Power and fuel

Salaries, wages and benefits
Depreciation

Packing maternial consumed

Stores and spares consumed
Repalrs and maintenance

Insuranca

Allowance for expacted credit |osses
Othears

Waoark in process
Opening stock
Clasing stock

Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods
Opening stock
Purchase of finished goods
Closing stock

Row material consumed
Opening stock

Purchases including purchase expenses

Clasing stock

It includes Rs.39.56 million (2021: Rs. 14.4 million)

DISTRIBUTION COST

Export development surcharge
Ocean freight

Forwarding expenses

Local freight

Fuel expense

Others

25.1 5,729,938,658 5,045,139,882
543,186,453 411,637,918
25.2 314,173,887 273,323,915
5.3 145,983,553 156,070,442
102,403,524 91,216,576
118,152,968 67,597,426
8,247,945 3,446,278
7,340,737 5,291,888
250,337 =
2,060,892 1,284,547
6,971,738,954  §,055,008,872
40,247,255 35,073,406
{49,121,588) {40,247, 255}
(8,874,333) {5.173,849)
6,962,864,621 6,049,835,023
124,796,243 129,549,303
274,717,500 1,004,498,250
(205,060,404) {124,796,243)
194,453,339 1,009,251,310

7,157,317,960

7,059,086,333

1,235,098,282

1,235,098,282

5,917,335,938 4,621,171,762

7,152,434,220 5,.856,270,044
(1,422,495,562) {1,235,088,282)

5,729,938 658 4,621,171,762

in respect of staff retirement benefits - gratuity.
2 20,
Note 022 gy 2021

15,229,651 11,612,681

115,197,724 63,527,051

25,491,686 29,053,007

11,861,766 15,106,888

16,961,878 20,789,997

562,640 736,564

185,305,345 140,826,188
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27.1

27.2

27.3

28.

29,

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES ———ARUpess ———

Salaries, wages and benefits 271 62,581,886 57,409 664
Directars’ remuneration i3 67,264,830 52,563,589
Depreciation 5.3 13,961,265 12,484,451
Vehicle running and maintenance 15,857,882 11,833,231
Travelling and conveyance 4,449,572 2,699,423
Postage, telephone and fax 3,320,500 3,003,368
Electricity, gas and fuel 3,012,484 2,690,451
Printing and stationery 2,767,552 1.790.678
Auditors” remuneration 27.2 1,982,507 1,650,000
Rent, rates and taxes 3,635,275 3,802,738
Denations 273 2,619,440 2,349,100
Insurance 1,952,358 1,589,101
Fees, subscription and periodicals 5,415,133 0,335,847
Entertainment 3,419,513 1,833,026
Repairs and maintenance 681,955 584,898
Legal and professional charges 1,286,000 2,226,260
Others 3,751,398 3,674,361

197,959,549 168,520,186

It ineludes Rs. 3.68 million (2021: Rs, 4.8 million) in respect of staff retirerment benefits - gratuity,

2022 2021
Rupees —--——---
Auditors’ remuneration

Statutory audit fee 1,100,000 1,100,000

Consolidation fee 300,000 -
Review report on compliance with COCG 100,000 100,000
Half year review 250,000 250,000
Certificate for CDC and free float shares 200,000 200,000
1,950,000 1,650,000

Itincludes no amount above Rs, 500,000 given to any donee and none of the directors or their spouses
has any interest in the donee's fund,

2022 2021
Note RUpEESs =======-=-
OTHER EXPENSES
Workers” Profit Participation Fund 19.2 108,545,407 65,212,811
Unrealized loss on remeasurement of short term investments 26,556,585 -
Realized loss on disposal of short term investments 15,258,117 -
Bad debts wirtten off 9 - 500,638
150,360,109 65,713,449
FINANCE COST
Interest / mark up on:
Long term financing 28,120,192 28,617,320
Short term borrowings 30,882,008 29,095,151
Bank charges and commission 6,912,606 6,403,808
65,914,806 64,116,279
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31.1

31.2

31.3

32.

321
33.

33.1

OTHER INCOME
Incame from finoncial assets

Unrealized gain on remeasurament of short tarm investments
Realized gain on disposal of short term investments

Interest / profit on bank deposits

Dividend Iincomes

Income from non financial ossets

Gain an sale of property, plant and equipment

Profit / (Loss) on trading

Bargain purchase gain on acquisition of subsidiary
Remeasurement of Gas Insfrastructure

Development Cess {GIDC)

TAXATION
Currant year:
Currant
Defarred
Prior year adjustment

311

2022 2021
Rupees

- 50,483,705

- 5,746,619

2,375,506 617,125

58,639,990 27,831,814

914,089 343,434

. 3,874,928
7,171,562 =

- 7,524,837

69,101,147 06,422,462

153,194,066 88,361,973

= 15,092,718

(247,013) {14,575.535)

152,947,047 BE R79,156

The Company falls under the ambit of presumptive tax regime under section 169 of the Income Tax

Ordinance, 2001 for the current year.
Provision for deferred income tax is not required as the Company

s chargeable to tax under section

169 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001-and no temporary differences are expected to.arise in the

Reconciliation of tax expense and product of accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate Is not

required in view of presumptive taxation.

2022 2021
EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DHUTED {RUPEES]
Profit after tax Rupees 1,916,978,158 1,150,164,261
Weighted average number of ardinary
Numbers 20,700,000 20,700,000
Earnings per share - basic and diluted {Rupees) Rupees 92.61 55.56
There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company.
REMUNERATION TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTOR
Chief executive Director _Executives

2022 e e RUQEES ——-mmmmmmammmem
Remunaration 22,363,636 10,254,545 19,791,273
House rent 2,236,364 1,025,455 1,979,127
Conveyance - cars 1,586,196 292,695 4,443,925
Other benefits 159,117 244 10,388,695 6,422,946

45,303,440 21,961,390 32,637,271
MNumber of persons 1 1 14

Chief executive Director Executives

2 il 111 2. 1. tmtetetmitetetmie
Remunaration 15,636,364 10,506,000 16,862,182
House rent and other benefits 1,563,636 1,050,600 1,686,218
Conveyance - Cars 1,152,644 257,535 2,045,526
Other benefits 10,350,888 7,645,922 6,028,753

33,103,532 19,460,057 27,522,679
Mumber of persons 1 1 14

Chiaf Executive and a director are also entitled to free use of the Company maintained cars.
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34.1

34.2

35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financlal instruments:

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s  exposure to each of the above risks, the
Companys objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk. Further guantitative
disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial statement.

The Board of Directors has owverall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's

risk management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's

risk management policies.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter party to a financial

instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from deposits, trade debts,

lopans and advances, other receivables and bank balances. The carrying amount of financial assets

represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure fo credit risk at the reporting date was:

2021
Rupees

Trade debits 765,425,459 1,186,277,053

Other receivables 46,922 498 26,719,292

Long term deposits 7,011,240 6,991,200

Bank balances 87,231,184 120,534,692
516,590,380  1,340,522,237

The Company’s credit risk exposures are categorized under the following headings:

Counterparties

The Company conducts transactions with the following major counterparties:

Trade debts

Public sectors

Banksand other financial institutions

Mutual Funds

The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining

sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

The Company’s exposure is continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded

15 spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure s controlled by counterparty limits that

are reviewed and approved by the management annually.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company objectives when managing capital are:
to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with

Capital comprises all components of equity {i.e. share capital, reserves and unappropriated profit). The
Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments o it
in the light of changes in economic conditions. |n order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or |ssue new shares.

The deht-to-adjusted capital ratios at June 30, were as follows:

2021 2020
=== RUPEES —o—
Total debt 1,042,925,008 987,994,572
Less: Cash and cash equivalents {37,675,556) (32,624,872)
Met debt 845,259,452 855,369,700
Total equity 8,109,245,1894  4,407,739,343
Adjusted capital 9,054,504,646 5,363,109,043
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio 10.44%% 17.81%
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352  Credit risk related to trade debtors

Trade debts are esseptially due from local and foreign customers against sale of yarn and waste material and the
Company does not expect these counterparties to fail to meet their obligations. The majority of sales to the
Company’s customers are made on specific térms. Customer credit risk is managed subject to established
policies, procedures and controls relating to customer credit risk management, Credit limits are established for all
customers based on internal rating criteria. Cradit quality of the customer is assessed  based onan extensive credit
rating. Cutstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and any shipments to foreign customers  are
generally coverad by letters of credit.

Trade debts are generally on 60 to S0 days credit terms.

Impairment losses

The aging of trade debts at the reporting date was:

2022 2021
Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
el 1171 1. 4 . it atteatsatsate
Mot yet due 789,963,965 - 1,187,969,418 -
Past due for
- more than 3 months but less than 1 year 1,512,690 1,800,341 325,076 1,800,341
- more than 1 year but less than 2 years 49,676 105,817 247,321 105,817
- more than 2 years 9,445 360,040 1,436 360,040
791,535,776 2,266,198 1,188,543,251 2,266,158
Concentration of credit risk

Trade debts consist of a large number of diversified customers, spread across geographical areas. Ongoing credit
evaluation is perfarmed on the financial condition of accounts receivable where appropriate. The Company does not
have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar
characteristics.

3521 k b i n
Credit risk on balances with banks is managed by management in accordance with the Company's policy. Excess
funds are placed in deposits with reputable banks and financial institutions.

4 Long term Short Term

Bank Name Rating Agency - foans
The Bank of Punjab PACRA AA+ Al+
Askari Bank Limited PACHA, LTS AL+
Allied Bank Limited FACRA AAL Al+
Banklslami Pakistan Limited PACRA, At Al
Bank alfalah Limited PACRA, Adv Al+
Bank Al Habib Limited PACHA ALK Al+
Faysal Bank Limited PACHA AL Al+
Habib Bank Limited PACHA AR Al+
Hahib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACHA Ak AL+
United Bank Limited PALCRA AAR A1+
National Bank of Pakistan PACHA MAR Al+
MCE Bank Limited PACHA AAA Al+

353  Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk s the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
Management closely monitors the Company’s  liquidity and cash  flow position, This includes maintenance of
statemnent of financial position liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of the overall funding
mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customer,

The Compamy's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flesbility through the use of
bank overdrafts and bank loans.



354  Market risk
Market risk [s the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices
will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of markat risk
management Is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while cptimizing

35.4.1 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of the
changes in foreign exchange rates.

Expgsure to currency risk

The Company 5 exposed Lo currency risk on trode debts which are denominated in currency other than the
functional currency of the Company. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

2022 2021

Rupees Us Dolfar Rupees s Dollar
Trade debts 254,322,451 1,242,090 795,989,799 5,053,903

254,322,451 1,242,090 795,929,799 5,053,903
The following US Dollar exchange rates were applied duning the year: 2022 2021

A A 2021

Average rate 179.13 180.24
Statermnent of financial pasition rate 204.75 157.50

censitivi Pt T
At June 30, 2022, ifthe Rupee had weakened [strengthened by 10% (2021: 10%} against the US Dollar with all other
variables held constant, profit for the year would have been lower [ higher by Rs, 27.79 million (2021: Rs. 79.6
millian), as a result of foreign exchange gains flosses on translation of foreign currency  trade debts. Profit / {loss) s
less sensitive to movement in Rupes [fareign currency exchange rates in 2022 than 2021 because of high recovery
from export debtors,

35.4.2 Interest rate risk

Interest fmark-up rate risk arises from the possibility that changes ininterest fmark-up rates will effect the value of
financial instruments, The Campany has significant amount of interest based financial assets and financial liabilites
which are largely based on variable interest / mark-up rates, therefore the Company has to manage the related
finance cost which exposes itto the risk of 3 menth and & month KIBOR. Since the impact on Interest rate exposure
is significant to the Company, management is considering the alternative arrangement to manage interest rate

expasure in future. 2022 2021
Fixed rate instruments Elfective Effective
Interest Rote Rupees Interest Rote Rupees
Financiol ossets:
- Deposit Accounts B - 12% 134,432  5.50%- 6.25% 142,643

Variable rate instrumen

Einancial liabilities:
- Long term financing 3% - 9.28% 1,042,935008  1.25%-8.21% 990,637,631
- Short term borrowings 7.86% - 15.06% - 7.81% - 8.69% 29,537,798

1,043,069,440 1,020,318,072

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were held constant, the Company's
profit [ loss for the yvear ended lune 30, 2022 would decrease [ increase by Rs. 1042 millien {2021: Rs. 10.20
million). This is mainly attributable to the Company's exposure 0 Interest rates on its variable rate financial
instruments.

35.4.3 Other price risk

Other price risk s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market prices {other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar
financial instruments traded in the market. The Company 5 not materially exposed to other price nsk on financial

assets and liabilities.



35.4.4 Equity share price risk

355

35.5.1

The Compamy is also exposed to the equity price risk arising from the fluctuations due to change in fair value of
thase equity iRstruments.

Sensitivity onalysis - Equity share price risk

A 1% increase / decrease in share prices at year end would have increased [/ decreased profit for the year as follows

2022 2021
—r— Rupees ———
Effect on profit ar loss 19,803,301 8,350,134

Fair values

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or 3 liability settled, between knowledgeable willing
parties in an arms length transaction other than in a forced or liguidation sale.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilites reflected in the consclidated financial statement approximate
their fair values,

Foir value hierarchy

Following are three levels in fair value hierarchy that reflécts the significance  of the inputs used in measurement of
fair values of financial instruments and non financial assets.

Level 1z Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or hiabilities,

Level 2: Inputs other than guoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
iability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. drive from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for asset or liahility that are not based on abservable market data (unobservable inputs).

The Company does not have anmy other financial instruments to be classified here other than “Short term
investments” as disclosed in note 12, that are classified in level 1 and level 2 25 per hierarchy stated above.

The Company follows the revaluation model for its free hold land, building on free hold fand, plant and machinery,
The fair value measurement as at June 30, 2022 was performed by MYK Aszociates (Private) Limited & Joseph
Lobo (Private] Limited. MYK Associates (Private) Umited & loseph Lobo (Private) Limited both are on panel of
Pakistan Banks Association as ‘Any Amount’ asset valuator, Itis also on the panel of State Bank of Pakistan and
possesses  appropriate gualification and recent experience in the fair value measurements  in the relevant locabions.
The fair value of the assets was determined using the comparable price method after perferming detailed enguiries
and verification from various estate agents, brokers and builders keeping in view the lacation of the property/project,
condition, size, ublization, and other relevant factors. In estimating the fair value of free hold land, building on free
hald land and plant and machinery, the highest and best use of these assets is their current use.

Since the date of last revaluation, there has been no material change in the market factors that derive fair value of
these properties, therefore, management believes that the carrying walue of these non financial 2ssets approximate
its fair market value,

Short term invastmants include ouoted aguity shares. The investment are valued at each reparting date at their fair
value by using the prevailing guoted prices of shares on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

dune 30, 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees:

Short term investments 299,668,983 1.680,661,158 . 1,980,330,141
Free hold land - 1,158,040,000 . 1,158,040,000
Bullding on free hold land - 518,526,350 . 518,526,350
Investment proparty - 2,342 055 - 2,342 055
Plant and machinery - 2, 000,000,000 - 7 000,000,000
Total 299,668,983 5,360,569,563 - 5,660,238,546
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36.

37.

Junie 30, 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level ¥ Total

Short torm imvestmants 193,989,353 B41,024,587 S 835,013,940
Frea hold land . 192,914,491 - 192,914,491
Building an free hold land - 154,057,033 194,057,023
Investment property - 2;342,055 - 2,342,055
Plant and machinery - 1,190,577.905 " 1,194,577 905
Total jo3.o9o 263 AE20olE 051 . SAlaons ala

Thiere were no Ltransfers betwesan levels of fair value hierarchy during the period.
Financial lnstruments by category

The Campany finances its operations through oguity, borrowings and management of working capital witha view to
maintain an approdmate mix botwoon various sourcos of finance to minimize risk.

The accounting policies for linandal instrurnents have been applied for line items ag below:

Assels corried ot fair valuwe 2022 2021
Carrying value of Investments at fair value through —— Rupees -————
pralit or loss 1,B80,330,141 #35,013,940
1,880,330,141 B35,013,940
Assels cotegovized ot amortized cost
Trade debts 765,425,459 1,186,277.053
Lang term depasits 7,011,240 6,991,200
Trade deposits and shart term propayments 3,238,226 2,239,226
Loans and advances 14,641,697 921,117
Cash and bank Balances 97,675,556 120,759,269
HE7. 993,178 1,318,187 BGES
Liabilities carried at amortized cost
Trade and other payables 264,763,276 236,792,077
Lang term financing 1,042,935 008 a0 637,631
Short term borrowings - 29,537,798
Unclaimed dividend 22,759 665 22,183 456
accrued mark up 8,320,237 10,266,875

1338 778,186 1.280.417.837

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise associated wundertakings, other related group companies, directors of the
Company and key management personnel, The Compary In the normal course of business  carries ot
transactions with various related parties. Amounts due from and to related parties are shown under
trade debts [note 9.1), trade and other payables (note 19.3) and remuneration of Chief Executive and
director {(note 34}, The Indus Home Limited and Indus Dyeing & Manulacturing Co. Limited s
associated wundertaking based on common directorship. Other significant transactions with related
parties are as follows:

Transactions with associated undertakings (due to commen directership) 2022 2021
indus Dyeing & Manufacturing Company Limited ~ sooeeeceeee Rupegs ---ccoooo
Purchase of goods and services 130,557,150 445,813.00
Indus Home Limited

Sale of goods and services 98,982,530 295,852,531
Purchase of goods and services - -
Purchase of TFC's 100,000,000 -

Sale of land - -

All transactions with related parties have been carried out on agreed terms and conditions.

2022 2021
PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION T e Rupees —-—-—-—
Mumber of spindles |nstalled 34,896 34,896
Mumber of spindles worked 34,802 34,792
Mumbrer of shifts / day 3 3
Installed capacity after
conversion into 20/5 count Kgs 11,916,060 11,948,706
Actual production of yarn after
comversion into 20/s count Kgs 11,430,039 11,882,023
Reasons for shortfall

It is chifficult 1o describe preclsely the production capacity n splaning  wnit since It fluctuates  widely
depending on various factors such as count of yarm spun, spindles speed and twist etc, Italso varies
according to the pattern of production adopted in a particular year.
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Shabbir Kansar

Chletf Financial DMices

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

2021 Cash flow 2022
Rupees Rupees Rupees
Long term finances 990,637,631 189,094,037 1,179,527 626
Short term borrowings 29,537,798 {29,537,798) -
Dividend 22,183,456 576,209 22,759,665
1,042,358,885 160,132,448  1,202,287,291

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company's core business is manufacturing and sale of yarn and it generates more than 30% of its
revenue and profit from the production and sale of yarn. Decision making process is centralized at head
office led by Chief Executive who is continuously involved in day to day operations and regularly reviews
operating results and assesses its performance and makes necessary decisions about resources fto
be allocated to the segments. Currently it has one yarn manufacturing unit. Owing to the similarity in
nature of the products and services, nature of the production processes, type or class of customers for
the products and services, the methods used to distribute the products, the nature of the regulatory
environment all the yarn producing units are aggregated into 2 single operating segment and the
Company's performance is evaluated by the management on an overall basis, therefore these
operational segments by location are not separately reportable segments.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees at the year end and average number of employees during year are as follows:

2022 2021
Total number of employees as at June 30 713 704
Average number of employees during the year 720 707

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

The preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statement for the year ended June 30,
2022 is in accordance with the requirements of IFRSs. Following is the major reclassification made for
better presentation:

assified to upees
Reclassified R
113,363,625

Reclassified from

Loans and Advance Advance Income Tax

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated financial statement were authorized for issue on _October 04,2022 by the
Board of Directors of the Company.

GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee, except where stated otherwise,

T”f(( | L asb éf-

Kashif Rz Mian Imran Almed

Chiel Execulive Ofcer Chairman
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PROXY FORM
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Shareholder's Folio No- Mumber of shares held I/

We. Of (full address)

being a member of SUNRAYS TEXTILE MILLS

LIMITED herebyappoint

Mr. [ Mrs, [ Ms of (full address}

or failing him/her/ Mr. / Ms: of

(full address}

as my / our proxyin my/our absence to atlend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the AnnualGeneral
Meeting of theCompany to be held on27" dayof October.2022 at 4:30p.m. plot # 3 &7, Sector-

25 Korangi industrial Area, Karachi and at any adjourned meeting thereof.

WITNESSES
WITNESS # 1 WITNESS # 2
SIGNATURE SIGNATURE
NAME NAME
CNIC # CNIC#

Signature on
Rs. 5¢

Revenue Stamp

1. Proxies in order to be effective, must be recelved at the Company's Registered Office/ Shares Registrar
not less than 48 hours before the meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessad.

2. CDC shareholders and their proxies are requested to atiach an attested photocopy of their CNIC or
passport with this proxy form before submission to the Company.



The Company Secretary

SUNRAYS TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
5" Floor 508 Beaumont Plaza Beaumont Road

Civil Lines Qtrs Karachi

AFFIX
CORRECT
POSTAGE




PATTERN OF HOLDING OF THE SHARES HELD BY THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF SUNRAYS TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

June 30, 2022

Mo, ol Sharshaldang Toatal PEMCENTAGE
sharmboidem Frarm Ta Sharws Hald OF TETRL CAPITAL
7RI 1 100 23,316 0.11
218 11 s00 G7.a42 0.33
dag 501 1,000 424,758 2058
G EY 1,061 = 0 RACLFAN 180
14 5,004 15.500 133,894 067
] 15, 401 B M) 0O, MR 0,04
7 35,001 150,000 511,817 2.47
5 160,00 60,600 2,667, 244 12.98
5 B60,001 1,950,000 757,009 3747
2 1,950,001 2,445,000 4,414,035 1132
1 2,415,001 4,275,000 4,273,535 Flad A
1,738 20,700,000 10000
CATEGDRIES OF SHARE HOLDE IS
A at bune 30, 2022
Shanohociders B ad SHAREL
Ehare Holders HELD ki e
individuals 1,708 5,065,819 24.47
Associated Campanies i 05,862 Ll =
Fenanclal institutiens 1 7728 0.3s
psLrates Cirmganm i 120,582 .58
Flish il Fuansl i LT Er o827
Ioimt Stock Campanies Il 10,580 (ER ]
Directors, CEO their Spouses 15 12,266,796 892
& Minor Chisdren
1,738 206,700,000 160
DETAIL OF CATEGORIES OF SHARE HOLDERS
Az at hune 30, 2022
Mame L. Shares Held
Shara®io e erd
| MDY IDUALS I 1,708 5.065.819
| ASSOCIATED COMPAMIES I 1
B, indus Dysing B BManufectunng Compary Limited 205, 0EF
205 0632
| FIMARCIAL INSTITUTIONS I 1
Mational Baak af Pakiszan 75719
72,729
| JDANT STDCK COMPANIES I 11
TREET CORPORATIIN LIMITED 3000
V.5, SECLIRITIES & SERVICES (PYTI LTD 2,100
5.H. BUKHARI SECURITIES [PYT| ITD 1200
MH CARITAL [PRIVATE] LIBMITED El
MAPFLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED 3
S BAANLAR FIMANCIALS (PWT) LTD EL
4,500

FIEREES |PRINATE) LIMITED



BLACK STONE EQUITIES (PVTILTD 30

WS AZEEM SERVICES (PWT]LTD 354
HABIE & SOMNS LIMITED (5F) 24
M/5 FIRST CARPITAL EQLITIES LTD T2
11,5B6
INSURANCE COMPANIES 1
State Life Insurance Corp, of Pakistan 120582
120,582
| MUTUAL FUND | 1
CDC-Trustes Mational lmvestmet (UNIT) Trust 256,526
956,526
| DIRECTORS, CEDQ, THEIR SPOLISES & MINOR CHILDREMN | 15
#ar. Shahzad Ahmiad 1,945, 4483
mr. Maveed Ahmed 1,155,140
Br, Kashif Riaz 4 273 536
Mr. krran Ahmed 1,740,483
8r, Irfan Ahmed 1,760,814
B Shalgat Masoad 13,712
M. Shabwaiz Ahrmed 594
M, Faisal Hanif 300
Ms. Azra Yagub Vawda 0
Br. Farcog Hassan is
Mrs. Fadia Kashit ZM13,356
BArs, Aisha Irfan 565,671
Wrs, Lozina Shahzad 80,085
Mrs. Shahria Naveed 13,445
Mrs. Tahla Imiran 4,164
GRAND TOTAL 14,266,796
200,700,000

Shareholders helding 10% of more voting interest in the compainy as at June 30, 2022

DIRECTORS, CEQ, THEIR

SPOUSES AND MINOR SHARES HELD PERCENTAGE %
CHILDREN
BAr. Kashil Riaz 4273536 20065
Mirs. Fadia Kashif 2413356 11.66

Detail of purchase  sale of shares by Directors, Comaany Secretary, Head of Internal Audit Department,

Chiel Finance Officer, Chiel Exgoutive Dlice and their spouses, minar children during 2021-2022

| NAME I I Purchase I Sold I Gift

Mr. Naveed Ahmed 579,138




DIVIDEND MANDATE FORM

The Company Secretary,
Subject Bank account details for payment of Dividend through electronic mode

Dear Sir,

Ifwefhessrs., being the
shareholder(s) of Sunrays Textile Mills Limited [the “Compary”], hereby, authorize the Company, to directly credit
cash dividend declared by it, my bank account as detailed below:

{i} Shareholder’s details:

Name of the Shareholder

COC Participant 1D & Sub-Account No. [ CDC [AS

CHIC/NICOPPassport/NTN No. (Please attach copy)

Contact Mumber (landline & Cell Nos.)

Shareholder’s Address

(i) Shareholder's Bank account details:

Title of Bank Account

IBAN (see Note 1 below)

Bank's Name

Branch Mame & Code Mo,
Branch Address

It is stated that the above particulars given by me are correct and | shall keep the Company, Informed In case of any
changes in the said particulars in future.

Yours Sincerely

Signature of Shareholder
(Please affix Company stamp in case of corporate entity)

Maotes:
{i) Please provide complete IBAN,  after checking with your concerned branch to enable electronic credit
directly into yeur bank sccount.
(i) This letter must be sent to shareholder's participant/CDC  Investor Account Services which maintains
his/her CDC account for incorporation of banks account details for credit of cash dividend declared
by the Company from time totime.
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